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3,598,372 | 107.98 388,538,379 | 117.14 421,513,288 | 99.4
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693

10
FNMA TBA 3.0% JUN 30YR 6.00% | 2054 6 13 12.6%
FNMA TBA 3.5% JUN 30YR 6.50% | 2054 6 13 10.4%
FNMA TBA 4.0% JUN 30YR 5.50% | 2054 6 13 8.4%
FNMA TBA 6.0% JUN 30YR 5.00% | 2054 6 13 8.1%
FNMA TBA 5.5% JUN 30YR 3.00% | 2054 6 13 4.2%
G 11T 2GR AV vos | 2050 6 13 s on
EEXQSZAZSS THRU 30YR 4.00% | 2054 5 20 2.1%
ggggzpf,A(;SS THRU 30YR 6.00% | 2054 5 13 2.1%
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2023 2024

2020 12 31 457,290,093.19 71,748,816 104.12 16,336
2021 12 31 545,179,441.44 85,538,654 105.35 16,529
2022 12 31 384,546,011.27 60,335,269 100.36 15,746
2023 12 31 426,540,497.45 66,924,204 106.88 16,769
2023 417,007,842 .91 65,428,531 102.23 16,040
420,279,422.94 65,941,841 103.10 16,176

423,765,209.02 66,488,761 104.03 16,322

420,887,597.30 66,037,264 103.98 16,314

416,753,246.16 65,388,584 103.52 16,242

10 412,862,962.28 64,778,199 102.67 16,109

11 421,662,783.21 66,158,891 105.11 16,492

12 426,540,497 .45 66,924,204 106.88 16,769

2024 427,774,173.98 67,117,768 107.68 16,895
424,064,290.53 66,535,687 107.84 16,920

429,683,593.38 67,417,356 109.00 17,102

424,256,135.95 66,565,788 108.32 16,995
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2019 4,642,188 228,387 4,413,801
(4,642,188) (228,387) (4,413,801)

2020 12

2021 1,907,133 1,134,881 5,186,053
(1,907,133) (1,134,881) (5,186,053)

2021 12

2002 430,245 1,783,381 3,832,917
(430,245) (1,783,381) (3,832,917)

2022 12

2003 666,649 508,406 3,991,160
(666,649) (508, 406) (3,991,160)

2023 12
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
usb usb
20 5 424,038,087 66,531,576 383,741,445 60,209,033
2.1 4,219,403 662,024 2,433,402 381,801
2.10 3 1,875,238 294,225 808,146 126,798
2.4 185,465 29,099 241,778 37,935
102,635 16,103 46,170 7,244

430,420,828 67,533,028 387,270,941 60,762,811

2.4 1,855,962 291,200 800,369 125,578

8.2C 709,855 111,376 648,230 101,707

8.2B 579,178 90,873 530,285 83,202

2.10 3 185,456 29,098 241,601 37,907

137,259 21,536 137,259 21,536

103,380 16,220 54,467 8,546

8.1C 89,835 14,095 81,612 12,805
8.1B 63,392 9,946 35,507 5,571
8.1A 44,371 6,962 41,632 6,532

8.1E 30,762 4,827 22,131 3,472
8.2E 10,531 1,652 9,642 1,513
8.1D 4,213 661 2,485 390

621 97 323 51

3,814,815 598,544 2,605,543 408,810

426,606,013 66,934,483 384,665,398 60,354,001
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
USD USD
FVTPL @
2.11 148,040 23,227 37,894 5,946
211 7 5,153,185 808,535 7,425,439 1,165,051
27,253,949 4,276,145 (27,137,016) (4,257,798)
2.2 2.11 7
32,555,174 5,107,907 (19,673,683) (3,086,801)
8.2C 2,767,615 434,239 3,032,196 475,752
8.2B 2,270,227 356,199 2,487,421 390,276
8.1C 1,031,921 161,908 1,130,646 177,398
8.1A 247,661 38,858 270,556 42,450
8.1B 137,094 21,510 137,094 21,510
54,673 8,578 54,673 8,578
8.2E 41,277 6,476 45,226 7,096
8.1E 35,796 5,616 35,796 5,616
8.1D 4,128 648 4,128 648
2,070 325 2,070 325
i} - 53,775 8,437
6,592,462 1,034,357 7,253,581 1,138,087
25,962,712 4,073,550 (26,927,264) (4,224,888)
25,962,712 4,073,550 (26,927,264) (4,224,888)
@ FVTPL
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PINCO
2023 12 31
USD
2021 12 31 546,859,571 85,802,267
3 43,252,737 6,786,354
2.8 3 (178,519, 646) (28,009,732)
(26,927,264) (4,224,888)
2022 12 31 384,665,398 60,354,001
3 68,544,330 10,754,605
2.8 3 (52,566,427) (8,247,672)
25,962,712 4,073,550
2023 12 31 426,606,013 66,934,483
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
usD usD
25,962,712 4,073,550 (26,927,264) (4,224,888)
(67,857,855) (10,646,897) (42,819,531) (6,718,384)
59,968,347 9,409,034 184,942,699 29,017,509
(5,153,185)  (808,535) (7,425,439) (1,165,051)
(27,253,949) (4,276,145) 27,137,016 4,257,798
56,313 8,836 29,150 4,574
(56, 465) (8.859) (46,170) (7,244)
1,055,593 165,623  (9,305,938) (1,460,102)
209,824 32,921 (446,672) (70,083)
(13,068,665) (2,050,474) 125,137,851 19,634,129
67,477,238 10,587,179 52,656,803 8,261,852
(52,622,572) (8,256,482) (178,549,026) (28,014,342)
14,854,666 2,330,697 (125,892,223) (19,752,490)
1,786,001 280,224 (754,372)  (118,361)
2.1 2,433,402 381,801 3,187,774 500,162
2.1 4,219,403 662,024 2,433,402 381,801
148,040 23,227 37,894 5,946
)
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
1.
PIMCO
2013 12 2 UBS
i 1l
2019
5 31
2019 7
9
2021 2014 1 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
2021 12 6 CsC

Intertrust Group
CSC 2022 11 Intertrust Group

UBS

A A uSb

B USD
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

B USD usb

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
100.0

=
[}

B USD
B USD

2163 12 1

@ 3

1))
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
1
1 31
1
1
1
UBS Group AG UBS 2023 3 19
FINMA Credit Suisse Group AG
2023 6 12 UBS Group AG Credit Suisse Group AG
Credit Suisse International
2024 4 30
2.
IFRS
IFRS IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL FVOCI IFRS
9
FVTPL
FVTPL

i) SPPI
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

) SPPI
i)
iii) FVTPL
SPPI
SPPI
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ECL

ECL
FVTPL
2023 1 1
(significant)

12
ECL
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
2023 1 1
2.1
3
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 2022
$ 11,968 $ 7,385
4,207,435 2,426,017
$ 4,219,403 $ 2,433,402
2.2
Q)
FVTPL
2023 12 31 - 2023 12 31 -
$ 424,038,087 $ 396,539,781
2022 12 31 - 2022 12 31 -
$ 383,741,445 $ 383,497,088
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

®

©

©

®
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
®
NAV
(D
(ii) NAV (iii) (iv)
1
12
i
il
100,000
3
8
2.3
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2.4
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

2.5

2.6

Q)

®

2.7
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

2.8

IAS 32

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12

2022 12 31

FVTPL

FVTPL

2063 12 2
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

IAS 12

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

2.13

1 100
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2 5
2023 12 31 1
1
A $ 426,606,013 3,991,160 $ 106.8877
2022 12 31 1
1
A $ 384,665,398 3,832,917 $ 100.3584
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 1

100
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
5

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
4 5 0.40%
5

2023 12 31

A $ 68,544,330 $ (52,566,427)
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2022 12 31
A $ 43,252,737 $ (178,519,646)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
A 3,832,917 666,649 (508,406) 3,991,160
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
A 5,186,053 430,245 (1,783,381) 3,832,917
1
4.
5.

5.1
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

Q)

IMF
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

(i)

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 50

21,037 12,130
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 1
4,240,381 3,837,414 1

2023 12 31

$ 1,271,458
443,751
302,491

12,347,566
1,637,973
1,941,729

11,568,179
1,099,218

10,689,590
5,426,580
1,750,548
1,322,849
8,830,072
4,230,234
1,374,058
1,752,014

142,655

1,137,584

71,000

5,552,809
4,403,969
5,559,879
3,947,800 -9%
37,537,096 9%
480,215,960 113.3%

$ 604,557,062 142.6%

.3%
.1%
-1%
-9%
-4%
-5%
-T%
.3%
.5%
.3%
4%
.3%
.1%
.0%
.3%
-4%
-0%
-3%
. 0%*
.3%
.0%
.3%

0 O P PP OOOOOFPNOORFPRNMNMNODNOODNOODO

* 0.0 0.05
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

2022 12 31

-3%
-1%
1%
.T%
4%
-4%
-4%
-4%
.5%
.3%
-2%
5%
-4%

$ 1,066,108
432,301
529,912

14,144,912
1,421,535
1,644,352
1,563,230

13,065,023
2,050,412
1,225,682
8,321,308
2,118,361
1,391,739

868,678 -2%

1,441,582 4%

74,000 0.0%*

4,125,472 1.1%
3,696,678 1.0%
17,973,570 4.7%
354,667,490 92.5%

$ 431,822,345 112.6%

O O O O N O O WO o o wo o o

* 0.0 0.05

®

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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2022 12 31

A

2023 12

31

=

Aaa
Aal
Aa2
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Baa2
Baa3
Bal
Ba2
Ba3
B1
B2
B3
Caal
Caa2
Caa3
Ca

NR
WR

N
(o)

~
o o

N NN PFP OMNMNNMDNENODNNMNDNNBEMNDMNOOPR

-1%
.6%
3%
3%
-9%
.6%
5%

5%

-1%
4%
3%
-2%
4%

2%

-T%
3%
4%
4%
4%
-T%
-1%
5%
.T%

142.

6%

/S&P/

100/227
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

2022 12 31

2%
-T%
-1%
.8%
0%
8%
-5%
-2%
.3%
.8%
4%
.2%
.6%
-6%
-1%
.6%
9%
8%
112.6%

Aaa
Aal
Al
A2
A3
Baa2
Baa3
Ba2
Ba3
B1
B2
B3
Caa2
Caa3
Ca

O P O FPr O F PP OPFOPRF O OPF U|ls

NR
WR

[{e}
o -

* /S&P/

©
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 1 1 3
$ 1,855,962 $ - $ 1,855,962
709,855 - 709,855
579,178 - 579,178
185,456 - 185,456
137,259 - 137,259
103,380 - 103,380
89,835 - 89,835
63,392 - 63,392
44,371 - 44,371
30,762 - 30,762
10,531 - 10,531
4,213 - 4,213
621 - 621
$ 3,814,815 $ - $ 3,814,815
2022 12 31 1 13
$ 800,369 $ - $ 800,369
648,230 - 648,230
530,285 - 530,285
241,601 - 241,601
137,259 - 137,259
81,612 - 81,612
54,467 - 54,467
41,632 - 41,632
35,507 - 35,507
22,131 22,131
9,642 - 9,642
2,485 - 2,485
323 - 323
$ 2,605,543 $ - $ 2,605,543
15
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

©

5.2

Q)

®
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PIMCO

2023 12 31

©

©

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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2023 12 31
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®

2023 12 31

®

©

®

5.3
IFRS 13

2163 12 1
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PIMCO

2023 12 31
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
3
B
$ - $ 424,038,087 $ - $ 424,038,087
$ - $ 424,038,087 $ - $ 424,038,087
2022 12 31
2022 12 31
3
B
$ - $ 383,741,445 $ - $ 383,741,445
$ - $§ 383,741,445 $ - $ 383,741,445
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 1 2 3
2
2
NAV
2
2023 12 31

2022 12 31
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(i) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2
5.4
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
383,741,445 2023 12 31
19,920,471 1,927,462
17,880,715 39,008
273,555 2022 12 31
50,782,429 1,408,512
5,733,326 156,216
928,786
1
6.
100
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

108/227

424,038,087

638,945,247
604,557,062
1,172,976
487,787,960
431,822,345
873,650
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
7.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 5,153,185 $ 7,425,439
$ 5,153,185 $ 7,425,439
$ 27,253,949 $ (27,137,016)
$ 27,253,949 $ (27,137,016)
8.
8.1
Q)
5 0.07 10 0.06
10 0.05 3,750 2023 12
31 2022 12 31 2023 12
31 2022 12 31
®)
0.025 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
©
0.25
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023
12 31 2022 12 31
()]
0.01 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12
31
®
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
8.2
®
10,000 2023
12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31
2022 12 31
®
0.55
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
©
0.12
0.55
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
31

Actual/365
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PIMCO
2023 12 31
©
5,000
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
®
0.01
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
9.
10
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
10.
2024 2 1 UBS
2024 2 28
1l UBS i 2024 3 1
2024 4 30

2024 1 1 2024 4 30 10,543,204 18,375,390
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2023 10 31

598,109 93,843
0 0

741 116
2,924 459

0 0
17,299 2,714
76 12

66 10

0 0

TBA 247,271 38,797
923 145
2,780 436

3 0
870,192 136,533
3,789 594
9,445 1,482
14,496 2,274
405 64
2,071 325
9,631 1,511

0 0

2,114 332
TBA 414,678 65,063
6 1

0 0

1,865 293
458 72

283 44

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
459,241 72,055
410,951 64,478
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644,460 101,116
0 0
80 13
14,807 2,323
(629) (99)
410,951 64,478
3,731

110.14 17,281
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2023 10 31

* 18,253 2,864
* 8 1
92 14
18,353 2,880
[Inst]
72 11
72 11
18,281 2,868
(16,960) (2,661)
0 0
(2,198) (345)
4,673 733
203 32
(14,255) (2,237)
6,721 1,055
0 0
13,306 2,088
2,874 451
) 0
22,899 3,593
8,644 1,356
26,925 4,225
11 2

115/227



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

116/227



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 10 31

18,281 2,868

(14,255) (2,237)

22,899 3,593

26,925 4,225

* 9,098 1,427

36,023 5,652

374,928 58,826

410,951 64,478

12
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2023 10 31
102.79 16,128
@) 4.91 770
2.44 383
7.35 1,153
0.00 0.00
11014 17,281

(b) 7.15
410,951 64,478

0.02

0.00

4.52

0.01
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2023 10 31
145.5%
2.5%
AmSurg LLC
13.258% due 04/29/2027 $

16.695% due 04/28/2028 (b)
Azalea TopCo, Inc.

9.184% due 07/24/2026
Carnival Corp.

7.618% due 06/30/2025 EUR
Envalior Finance GmbH
10.883% due 03/29/2030
Envision Healthcare Corp.
13.250% due 07/10/2026
Lealand Finance Co. BV
3.000-6.439% due 06/30/2025
8.439%% due 06/28/2024
Poseidon Bidco SAS

9.222% due 09/30/2028 EUR
Pug LLC
8.939% due 02/12/2027 $

SVF 11 Finco (Cayman) LP
5.000% due 12/21/2025
Syniverse Holdings LLC
12.390% due 05/13/2027
Windstream Services Il LLC
11.674% due 09/21/2027

$10,337

18.2%

10.3%
Adler Financing Sarl
12.500% due 06/30/2025 (c) EUR
Agps Bondco PLC
5.000% due 04/27/2027
Atrium Finance PLC
2.625% due 09/05/2027
Balder Finland 0YJ
1.000% due 01/20/2029
Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena SpA
1.875% due 01/09/2026
Banco Santander S.A.
4.250% due 04/11/2027 $
6.527% due 11/07/2027 (d)
Bank of America Corp.
3.419% due 12/20/2028
Barclays PLC
6.224% due 05/09/2034
6.496% due 09/13/2027
Bevco Lux Sarl

1.000% due 01/16/2030 EUR
BPCE S.A.
6.612% due 10/19/2027 $

CaixaBank S.A.

6.684% due 09/13/2027

Credit Agricole S.A.

6.316% due 10/03/2029

Credit Suisse Group AG AT1 Claim (b)

Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
6.484% due 10/24/2029
HSBC Holdings PLC

2.357% due 08/18/2031
2.848% due 06/04/2031

119/227
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2,031 $ 2,383
897 817

8 7
1,585 1,677
1,194 1,101
641 641

3 2

28 21
1,700 1,804
19 18
1,138 1,068
476 424
252 234
10,197

2,989 3,346
4,300 1,537
1,900 1,505
2,300 1,640
1,463 1,388
2,200 2,040
1,600 1,603
2,300 2,048
784 719
1,200 1,189
2,100 1,734
4,200 4,180
600 594
2,000 1,966
480 53
1,200 1,200
1,100 830
2,435 1,912



2023 10 31

JPMorgan Chase & Co.
6.070% due 10/22/2027
Lloyds Banking Group PLC
3.750% due 01/11/2027
Nationwide Building Society
4.500% due 11/01/2026 (d)
NatWest Group PLC

4.892% due 05/18/2029
Societe Generale S.A.
6.447% due 01/12/2027
UBS AG

5.125% due 05/15/2024 (e)
UBS Group AG

6.246% due 09/22/2029
6.327% due 12/22/2027
6.373% due 07/15/2026
6.442% due 08/11/2028
UniCredit SpA

7.830% due 12/04/2023
Uniti Group LP

6.500% due 02/15/2029
10.500% due 02/15/2028
VICI Properties LP
4.625% due 06/15/2025
5.625% due 05/01/2024
Wells Fargo & Co.

6.303% due 10/23/2029

3.6%
Carvana Co. (¢)
12.000% due 12/01/2028
13.000% due 06/01/2030
14.000% due 06/01/2031
Community Health Systems, Inc.
5.625% due 03/15/2027
CoStar Group, Inc.
2.800% due 07/15/2030
GTCR W-2 Merger Sub LLC
7.500% due 01/15/2031
JetBlue 2020-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
4.000% due 11/15/2032
Market Bidco Finco PLC
4.750% due 11/04/2027
Nissan Motor Co. Ltd.
4.345% due 09/17/2027
4.810% due 09/17/2030
NMG Holding Co., Inc.
7.125% due 04/01/2026
Prime Healthcare Services, Inc.
7.250% due 11/01/2025
RegionalCare Hospital Partners Holdings, Inc.
9.750% due 12/01/2026
Rivian Holdings LLC
11.493% due 10/15/2026
United Airlines 2020-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
5.875% due 10/15/2027
Venture Global Calcasieu Pass LLC
3.875% due 08/15/2029
4.125% due 08/15/2031
Venture Global LNG, Inc.
8.125% due 06/01/2028
8.375% due 06/01/2031
9.500% due 02/01/2029
9.875% due 02/01/2032

120/227
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900 $ 898
600 552
1,500 1,595
500 463
1,200 1,189
900 888
800 784
800 792
1,050 1,044
1,250 1,238
700 701
456 297
601 579
1,249 1,201
123 122
700 694
42,521

257 192
386 286
457 341
961 781
300 233
1,000 988
167 148
800 726
600 543
800 680
400 374
2,609 2,377
3,300 3,089
800 802
1,229 1,212
200 167
200 161
300 291
300 286
825 839
275 279
14,795
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2023 10 31
4.3%
Altice Financing S.A.
5.750% due 08/15/2029 $ 483 $ 374
DISH DBS Corp.
5.250% due 12/01/2026 810 655
5.750% due 12/01/2028 470 342
Gazprom PJSC Via Gaz Capital S.A.
2.250% due 11/22/2024 EUR 600 491
8.625% due 04/28/2034 $ 430 392
Gazprom PJSC Via Gaz Finance PLC
2.950% due 04/15/2025 EUR 5,100 4,043
Intelsat Jackson Holdings S.A.
6.500% due 03/15/2030 $ 1,615 1,422
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
3.150% due 01/01/2026 3,268 3,025
3.250% due 02/16/2024 1,600 1,586
3.250% due 06/01/2031 200 155
3.300% due 12/01/2027 966 842
3.500% due 06/15/2025 685 652
3.750% due 07/01/2028 403 353
4.250% due 03/15/2046 300 190
4.500% due 12/15/2041 57 38
4.950% due 07/01/2050 590 412
Petroleos Mexicanos
6.700% due 02/16/2032 2,676 1,975
Topaz Solar Farms LLC
5.750% due 09/30/2039 318 290
Valaris Ltd.
8.375% due 04/30/2030 295 290
17,527
74,843
$89,556
61.0%
Fannie Mae
0.000% due 01/25/2043 2 1
3.000% due 09/25/2046 (F) 870 126
3.000% due 03/01/2050 1,111 899
3.000% due 05/01/2052 639 513
3.500% due 05/01/2052 975 813
3.500% due 06/01/2052 1,846 1,542
4.000% due 08/01/2042 63 55
4.000% due 09/01/2042 4 3
4.000% due 10/01/2042 2 2
4.000% due 10/01/2048 413 364
4.000% due 11/01/2048 60 53
4.000% due 03/01/2049 240 211
4.000% due 11/01/2049 40 35
4.000% due 01/01/2050 8 7
4.000% due 07/01/2050 78 68
4.000% due 08/01/2050 463 419
4.000% due 11/01/2050 676 594
4.000% due 09/01/2051 79 69
4.000% due 12/01/2052 363 314
4.500% due 10/01/2052 1,995 1,784
4.500% due 03/01/2053 994 889
4.500% due 08/01/2053 996 891
4.500% due 09/01/2053 995 890
5.000% due 04/01/2053 2,000 1,846
5.000% due 06/01/2053 2,000 1,846
5.000% due 07/01/2053 1,000 923
5.000% due 08/01/2053 2,000 1,846
5.000% due 11/01/2053 1,200 1,107
5.500% due 06/01/2053 2,992 2,841
6.500% due 09/01/2053 2,469 2,459
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2023 10 31
Fannie Mae, TBA (d)
3.000% due 12/01/2053 $ 29,300 $ 23,476
3.500% due 12/01/2053 8,092 6,746
4.000% due 12/01/2053 18,083 15,633
4.500% due 12/01/2053 7,400 6,611
5.000% due 12/01/2053 19,800 18,248
5.500% due 12/01/2053 27,000 25,606
6.000% due 12/01/2053 51,600 50,196
6.500% due 11/01/2053 19,200 19,084
6.500% due 12/01/2053 4,300 4,271
Freddie Mac
0.515% due 02/15/2044 (F) 1,254 82
2.500% due 01/15/2028 (f) 665 22
2.500% due 01/01/2051 3,049 2,361
2.500% due 02/01/2051 10,066 7,793
3.000% due 09/01/2049 534 432
3.000% due 05/01/2052 1,022 820
3.500% due 05/01/2052 986 822
3.500% due 06/01/2052 1,987 1,658
3.500% due 11/01/2052 993 828
3.500% due 12/01/2052 300 250
3.500% due 01/01/2053 990 825
3.500% due 03/01/2053 988 824
4.000% due 08/01/2042 55 48
4.000% due 09/01/2042 7 68
4.000% due 05/01/2048 99 87
4.000% due 08/01/2049 18 15
4.000% due 03/01/2050 1,126 985
4.000% due 05/01/2050 1,155 1,009
4.000% due 06/01/2050 631 551
4.000% due 10/01/2052 10,496 9,079
4.500% due 06/01/2053 1,997 1,785
4.500% due 09/01/2053 996 890
5.000% due 07/01/2053 3,000 2,769
5.500% due 06/01/2053 4,086 3,878
5.500% due 07/01/2053 2,977 2,827
GinnieMae
4.000% due 05/20/2049 415 372
5.500% due 07/20/2053 1,986 1,901
5.500% due 08/20/2053 1,792 1,715
Ginnie Mae, TBA (d)
2.500% due 12/01/2053 400 319
3.000% due 12/01/2053 200 165
3.500% due 10/01/2053 1,000 852
4.000% due 12/01/2053 9,900 8,707
4.500% due 11/01/2053 1,800 1,626
5.000% due 11/01/2041 1,300 1,210
250,856
$262,438
10.1%

Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (Q)
0.125% due 07/15/2024 (k) 10,991 10,737
0.125% due 10/15/2024 (k) 6,701 6,503
0.125% due 04/15/2025 475 454
0.125% due 07/15/2030 (m) 1,796 1,540
0.125% due 01/15/2031 118 100
0.125% due 07/15/2031 115 96
0.250% due 01/15/2025 3,630 3,495
0.250% due 07/15/2029 928 822
0.250% due 02/15/2050 955 531
0.500% due 04/15/2024 (m) 1,217 1,197
0.625% due 01/15/2024 (k) 8,553 8,476
0.625% due 07/15/2032 3,593 3,078
0.750% due 02/15/2042 136 98
0.750% due 02/15/2045 913 630
0.875% due 02/15/2047 890 617
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2023 10 31

1.000% due 02/15/2046 $ 389 $ 281

1.000% due 02/15/2048 872 615

1.000% due 02/15/2049 1,952 1,368

1.375% due 02/15/2044 132 105

1.500% due 02/15/2053 1,033 810

2.125% due 02/15/2041 140 131
41,684

$46,325
32.8%

510 Asset-Backed Trust

2.240% due 06/25/2061 2,463 2,310

Alternative Loan Trust

5.634% due 02/20/2047 (b) 1,961 1,481

5.979% due 01/25/2036 1,941 1,677

7.500% due 05/20/2046 1,864 1,642

American Home Mortgage Investment Trust

6.264% due 02/25/2045 1,470 1,337

Ameriquest Mortgage Securities, Inc. Asset-Backed Pass-Through

Certificates

4.974% due 12/25/2033 53 52

Argent Securities, Inc. Asset-Backed Pass-Through Certificates

6.299% due 01/25/2034 1,596 1,457

Avon Finance No.4 PLC

0.000% due 12/28/2049 GBP 2,500 3,020

Bear Stearns Alternative-A Trust

3.976% due 02/25/2036 (b) $ 2,356 1,928

Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust

5.312% due 06/11/2041 13 12

BSST Mortgage Trust

8.185% due 02/15/2037 500 400

8.835% due 02/15/2037 1,000 768

9.835% due 02/15/2037 400 298

Canterbury Finance No.4 PLC

6.042% due 05/16/2058 GBP 3,268 3,955

Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust

5.994% due 02/25/2036 $ 3,000 2,110

6.339% due 05/25/2034 620 596

CIM Trust

4.500% due 03/25/2062 2,368 2,193

Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust

3.518% due 05/10/2035 7,200 6,568

Countrywide Home Loan Mortgage Pass-Through Trust

6.159% due 02/25/2035 1,276 1,110

Credit Sulisse Mortgage Capital

3.620% due 02/27/2046 2,250 1,163

3.766% due 07/27/2037 3,303 2,772

Credit Sulisse Mortgage Capital Trust

1.796% due 12/27/2060 7,274 6,743

3.068% due 12/26/2059 1,233 1,219

3.904% due 04/25/2062 4,104 3,719

CWABS Asset-Backed Certificates Trust

5.689% due 02/25/2036 2,338 2,157

CWABS Asset-Backed Notes Trust

6.099% due 07/25/2036 169 165

Ellington Loan Acquisition Trust

6.539% due 05/25/2037 2,074 1,962

First Franklin Mortgage Loan Trust

6.389% due 07/25/2033 367 361

Freddie Mac Multifamily Structured Pass-Through Certificates

0.878% due 06/25/2029 (f) 1,585 63

2.972% due 10/25/2046 295 279

6.558% due 12/25/2047 129 128

Fremont Home Loan Trust

6.054% due 11/25/2035 2,200 1,864

6.114% due 01/25/2036 5,000 3,619
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2023 10 31
GCT Commercial Mortgage Trust $ $
7.799% due 02/15/2038 1,310 316
GS Mortgage-Backed Securities Trust
3.750% due 10/25/2057 2,233 2,108
GSAMP Trust
5.579% due 03/25/2047 1,161 1,005
6.414% due 06/25/2034 3,787 3,660
Hilton USA Trust
4.927% due 11/05/2035 3,597 1,619
HSI Asset Securitization Corp. Trust
5.579% due 12/25/2036 1,969 1,599
INTOWN Mortgage Trust
9.019% due 08/15/2039 400 400
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
0.360% due 10/05/2040 (F) 2,500 43
6.039% due 02/12/2051 32 264
JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
5.649% due 10/25/2036 170 166
JPMorgan Mortgage Trust
5.500% due 12/27/2035 62 45
LUXE Trust
7.204% due 10/15/2038 5,430 5,317
MASTR Adjustable Rate Mortgages Trust
6.059% due 09/25/2037 340 334
Mastr Asset-Backed Securities Trust
5.699% due 10/25/2036 191 85
MFA Trust
4.400% due 03/25/2068 4,548 4,207
MHC Commercial Mortgage Trust
7.049% due 04/15/2038 922 906
Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust
2.750% due 07/25/2059 307 289
Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
3.790% due 11/15/2032 820 602
NovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust
7.014% due 12/25/2034 831 773
PHH Alternative Mortgage Trust
6.000% due 02/25/2037 (b) 2,250 1,770
Precise Mortgage Funding PLC
6.122% due 10/16/2056 GBP 1,101 1,334
PRET LLC
2.487% due 10/25/2051 $ 3,930 3,692
3.721% due 07/25/2051 4,290 4,160
Pretium Mortgage Credit Partners LLC
1.992% due 02/25/2061 5,528 5,182
Residential Asset Mortgage Products Trust
6.179% due 05/25/2037 1,339 1,152
Residential Mortgage Acceptance Corporation No.3 PLC
0.000% due 02/15/2047 GBP 3,400 4,132
Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
5.659% due 10/25/2037 $ 3,107 1,881
5.729% due 07/25/2036 (b) 6,803 6,300
6.414% due 05/25/2035 1,000 945
Temple Quay No.1 PLC
6.689% due 07/24/2085 GBP 2,259 2,735
Towd Point Mortgage Funding
6.571% due 07/20/2045 3,278 3,976
7.011% due 02/20/2054 2,075 2,519
Towd Point Mortgage Trust
2.900% due 10/25/2059 $ 1,848 1,687
3.000% due 11/25/2058 185 183
3.750% due 09/25/2062 3,670 3,271
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
6.000% due 11/25/2042 327 295
6.419% due 10/25/2045 1,167 1,067
Warwick Finance Residential Mortgages Number Three PLC
7.370% due 12/21/2049 GBP 1,130 1,351
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2023 10 31

Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates WMALT Trust

5.560% due 04/25/2047 (b) $ 4,955 $ 3,955

WSTN Trust

6.297% due 07/05/2037 500 481
134,934

$146,585
11.2%

Aurium CLO 111 DAC

4.635% due 04/16/2030 EUR 3,368 3,495

Betony CLO 2 Ltd.

6.732% due 04/30/2031 $ 938 937

BlueMountain CLO XXII Ltd.

6.735% due 07/15/2031 3,169 3,163

BNPP AM Euro CLO DAC

4.615% due 10/15/2031 EUR 2,462 2,553

Carvana Auto Receivables Trust

6.090% due 11/10/2026 $ 1,050 1,049

CIFC Funding 111 Ltd.

6.874% due 10/22/2031 2,625 2,624

CPS Auto Receivables Trust

6.130% due 09/15/2026 500 502

Fidelity Grand Harbour CLO DAC

5.045% due 03/15/2032 EUR 1,300 1,357

Ford Credit Auto Owner Trust

3.190% due 07/15/2031 $ 295 285

GLS Auto Receivables Issuer Trust

5.520% due 11/15/2027 1,000 982

LCM Loan Income Fund I Ltd.

6.707% due 04/20/2031 1,927 1,921

Man GLG Euro CLO 11 DAC

4.835% due 01/15/2030 EUR 210 220

MF1 LLC

7.484% due 06/19/2037 $ 1,000 999

Navient Private Education Loan Trust

3.910% due 12/15/2045 73 71

Navient Student Loan Trust

6.335% due 08/26/2069 2,024 1,996

Nelnet Student Loan Trust

6.640% due 02/20/2041 926 916

OneMain Financial Issuance Trust

4.890% due 10/14/2034 1,500 1,466

0ZLM XV Ltd.

6.967% due 04/20/2033 1,400 1,388

Pagaya Al Debt Trust

7.128% due 06/16/2031 2,100 2,100

7.600% due 12/16/2030 239 240

Palmer Square European Loan Funding DAC

TBD% due 05/15/2033 (d) EUR 2,000 2,114

Research-Driven Pagaya Motor Asset Trust $

7.130% due 01/26/2032 4,200 4,202

Research-Driven Pagaya Motor Asset Trust V

4.320% due 09/25/2030 3,171 2,989

Signal Peak CLO 5 Ltd.

6.750% due 04/25/2031 851 847

SMB Private Education Loan Trust

2.340% due 09/15/2034 63 61

6.770% due 02/16/2055 3,604 3,579

STWD Ltd.

6.529% due 07/15/2038 368 364

Upstart Pass-Through Trust

3.800% due 04/20/2030 1,241 1,194

Upstart Securitization Trust

5.500% due 06/20/2032 2,280 2,224
45,838

$46,375
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4.3%
Argentina Government International Bond
1.000% due 07/09/2029
3.500% due 07/09/2041
Australia Government Bond
1.750% due 06/21/2051
Israel Government International Bond
5.000% due 10/30/2026
Mexico Government International Bond (@)
2.750% due 11/27/2031
3.000% due 12/03/2026
4.000% due 11/30/2028
Peru Government International Bond
5.350% due 08/12/2040
5.400% due 08/12/2034
6.150% due 08/12/2032
Romania Government International Bond
5.500% due 09/18/2028
Russia Government International Bond
5.250% due 06/23/2047
South Africa Government International Bond
10.500% due 12/21/2026
Turkey Government International Bond
4.250% due 03/13/2025
5.250% due 03/13/2030
5.750% due 05/11/2047
7.625% due 04/26/2029

$21,100

0.6%
ADLER Group S.A.
Intelsat S.A. ()
Neiman Marcus Group Ltd. LLC (§)
Windstream Holdings 11 LLC

$1,869

0.0%
Uniti Group, Inc.

$119

0.0%
Intelsat Jackson Holdings S.A.
12/31/2049

$0

4._8%

0.7%
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.
3.000% due 11/01/2023
Bank of Nova Scotia
4.080% due 11/01/2023
4.830% due 11/01/2023
BNP Paribas Bank
(0.370%) due 11/01/2023
3.000% due 11/01/2023
3.330% due 11/01/2023
6.430% due 11/01/2023
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(0.370%) due 11/01/2023
4.830% due 11/01/2023

31
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17 $ 5
3,702 974
1,100 339
4,800 5.068

17,571 789
1,897 95
2,134 110

578 118

16 3

18 4
1,000 1,053

200 73
97,000 5,332
3,000 2,875
600 497

211 138

270 258
17,731

108,007 47

21,750 604
4,789 630

51,928 1,081

2,362

19 86
86

5 42
42

11 7
187 135
20 20
1 0

7 5
51 5
284 15
75 0
1 1
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2023 10 31
Citibank N.A.
4.830% due 11/01/2023 $ 83 $ 83
DBS Bank Ltd.
4.830% due 11/01/2023 71 71
DnB Bank ASA
2.990% due 11/01/2023 SEK 4 0
HSBC Bank PLC
3.100% due 11/01/2023 EUR 120 127
4.420% due 11/01/2023 GBP 0 1
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
4.830% due 11/01/2023 $ 151 151
MUFG Bank Ltd.
(0.370%) due 11/01/2023 \ 790 5
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
(0.370%) due 11/01/2023 \ 4,867 32
3.100% due 11/01/2023 EUR 1,180 1,247
4.830% due 11/01/2023 $ 8 8
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
(0.370%) due 11/01/2023 \ 19,266 127
3.100% due 11/01/2023 EUR 438 463
4.420% due 11/01/2023 GBP 24 29
4.830% due 11/01/2023 $ 193 193
2,725
0.0%
(34.133%) due 11/23/2023 (h) ARS 14,380 25
(32.511%) due 05/20/2024 (i) 4,707 7
32
4.1%
(0.234%) due 01/15/2024 (h) \ 1,270,000 8,389
(0.216%) due 01/22/2024 (i) 1,270,000 8,390
16,779
19,536
$19,756
(a) 145.5% $ 598,109
$644,460
M@ (0-3%) 1,189
$(629)
(45.8%) (188,347)
100.0% 3 410,951
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2023

(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Az pals December 31, 3023 December 31, 2022
Financial assals at G value through profit or loss [Mode 2 2, 5) ¥ 424 033 027 $ 283,741 445
Cash and coth squialents (Mole 2.1) 4.2719.403 2453402
Recayables for.
Units issuad (Mol 2 10, 3} 1,875,238 BOR, 146
Sabi of weeiestmecd i the Salected Fumd (Mol 24§ 185 465 HATIE
Other assets 102, G35 46,170
Tolal assals 4304 20838 8T 270 641
Linbilities
Paryablis bor
Purchase of Investment inthe Selected Fund (Wobe 24 ) 1,655,962 20,359
Fae agart fees (Mote 5 3C) TiR.855 48 230
Irvsistmint mana oo end lees (Mobe & 28] 579178 230,785
Urits repurchased (Mote 210, 3] 185,456 241801
Organzaban kes 131,259 137,259
Prrding faes 105,380 54 48T
DCustribution fees (Mote & 10) 89,835 81,6512
Custody ke (Maobe 8 18) 63,382 35,307
Adminestralor fees (Mote 8. 14) 44,371 41,632
Frofesmonal fees [Mole 8 1E) 30,762 FrRES]
Agert member corvpany S (Mobs & 7€) 10,531 0542
Trensher agant fees (Mote & 10 4,213 2485
Ragtrabon lids £21 323
Liabslities £ 3. 814,815 E 2605 543
Equity [bsing net assets attrbutable to the holder of units :3 426 806,013 £ 184 G65.208

The accompanying nobes are an integral part of these financial statemants
1
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in U5, Dolfars)

Incame D cember 31, 2023 Decernber 31, 2022
Med incoma loss] from Anancial insiruoments & FVTIPL'D
Inferest income (Mote 2 11) § 148 040 § 37,604
Mat reglized gmn on ingncial assels and liabilties al lar vaiee
through profil or koss (Mate 211, T) 5,153,138 7425425

Mal changs in unreaized appredatonideprecabion] on ingncal
assets and kabiites at Gir value Bwough proft or loss (Mote 22

211, 7 2T 253 840 [27 137 018}
Tolal mcomedloss) 32 555114 (19673 683}

Expenses
Fas agent fees [Mote §.2C) 2767615 3082156
I eetment managemaent fees [Mote 8 18 2210227 TAET AN
Crstrivution fees (Mata 8.1C) 1,031,821 1,130,648
Admirestrabor fees (Mote & 14) 247,681 ITO556
Crdtody loes (MNoke 8 18) 137,004 137 084
Pranting fees 54 ET3 £4 673
Agent mem ber company fees (Note 8 3E) &7 45,206
Professional fegs {Mote & 1E) 35,796 35,7688
Trarster agent fees [(Mote & 10) 4128 4,128
Ragistration fees 2070 2070
OIrgana alien expencas - 53775
Total axpenses 5 502 462 1253 581

Operating profitiloes) befors finance costs 25 082 712 [ 26007 354

Total comprehensive incomedloss) (being increas o/[decrease) in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) § 25 0f2 T2 § (26537 364

19 Thus relates 1o net inooime from finameaal instruments maaswred al far value through profit of kss [FYTPLT)
includng realized and unmeatized gainsAosses on financial esseds and habilities at far valus throwgh proft orloss

The accompanying nobes are an inbegral part of these financial statemeants
2
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2023
{Expressed in LS, Dolfars)

At December 31, 2021 £ GG ASG 6T
Issug of units (Hobe 3) 43 252737
Repurchases of urls [Mobe 28, 3) (178.519,646]
Total comprehensive (koss ) {being (decrease]in net assets

bt b 1o the bolder of s oo oparations) (26 927 264
At December 31, 2032 § 384 865348
lsgue of units (Mole 3 68,5448 330
Repurchases of units [Mote 2.8, 3) |52 566427
Total comprehstging Incoms (bung norsass in ril sksels

attrbutainke bo e holder of unils from opsrabions ) 35962712
At December 31, 2023 $ 436606013

Thie accompaniying nobes ane an mbegral part of these financeal stabemsanis
3

130/227



PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2023
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(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Dwcember 31, 2033 December 31, 2023

Total comprehemrsive incomefioss) [being increasef{decrease) in mst
assels abiributeble 1o 1ne Rolder of unils Fom cperalions )
Adjusimends o reconabe bobal comprehensve incomed|oss ) (beng
incréasaldemrsase }in net assels afrbutable to the holder of urds from
operations ) bo cash (used inyprovided by operating activities
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund
Proceeds from dsposian of irvestment in the Seected Fund
Met realized gain on inancial assels and liabiites ot far valus
throwgh proft or loes

ik changs in unreaed (apareaation Vdsprea alon on inands
assets and habdbies o far value [I'I"OLIW proft oF bDss

Decraase inreceivabies for sale of investment in e Selectad Fund
{Increase) in other assats

Increasafdectease | n payables for purchass of mvestment
i b Sedectod Fund

Increasad decrease | n obhar payablest™
et cash (used inYiprovided by operating activities

Caszh flows from financing activities:

Proceads from wnils issued, net of changs i recesvatdes for urds
Essued

Repurcheses of unts, ned of change n payvabdes for units repurdheds d
Met cash providediused in) by financing activites

Met intreased decrease) n cash and cash equivaliants

Cash and cash squivalents o begirning of vear Mole 7 1)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year {Hete 2.1)

Supplementany infomation of cash Rows Fom operatsng adiates
Interest receved

£ 23962712 ¥ (26827 264)
[67 657 855) 42819531}
59 508 347 184 942 B9
(5153, 185) (7425458
[27,283 644) A3 008
56,313 28,150
156485] (48,170
1,055 583 {9,305 538)
08 834 446 672]
[13 068 B65) 135 137 851
B7.477,218 52 B55 B03
(53 632572] [178,540 DI6)
14,854 G5 (125,583 233}
1766001 [754,372)
7433 407 3 187774
H AMG403 & 2433 402
5 148,040 § A7 aad

B bhar pavaties compnse of tee agent fees, investment management feas, distibubon fees, transfer agent tees, cusiody fees,
professional fees. administrator fees, ponting feos, organizaion fees, agent member company kas and regisiration fees as

digdodad in [ Statement of Finencial Postion

The accompanying nobes are an integra part of these financial statemeants.
4
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

1. CRGANIZATION

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund (the “Senes Trust’) iz a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 11l
{fermeddy Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) lil) (the “Trust”), an epen-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
Master Trust Deed dated Decermber 2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant
to @ Supplemental Trust Deed dated May 31, 2018 and executed by Elian Trustee {(Cayrnan) Limited (the “Trustee™),
a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on
July 9, 2019,

The Trust is an exempted undt trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the E.“ayrm Islands and registered under
the Mutual Funds Act {2021 Revision) ofthe Cayman Izlands on January 22, 2014

The principal ofice for the Trustee (and therefore the Senes Trust) is One Mexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
K¥1-2005, Cayman |slands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Serdce Company ("CSC7) announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust Group of which
the Trustes is a whelly owned subsidiary. In Movember 2022 CSC closed on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

The manager of the Seres Trust is UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerty Credit Suisse Management
{Cayman) Limited) (the “Managar).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Senes Trust is Brown Brothers Harmman & Co. {the
“Adrrinistrater”, “Custodian” and “Transfer Agent”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent™).
Credit Suisse Securties (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company {the “Agent Memiber Company”).
Th Irvestment Manager of the Sedes Trust is PIMCO Japan Lid (the “lnvestment Manager ).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the “Distributor”) of the
units in Japan.

One class of units in the Seres Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the “Class A Units™). The Seres
Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U5, Dollars ("USD™ or “§7).

The investment objective of the Seres Trust is to invest indrectly mainky in fixed income instruments, fived income
dervatives and related assets across global markets {including emergng markets). The Series Trust alms to secure
attractive income and to seel long-term stable capidal appreciation. The Sedes Trust seeks to achieve its investment
objective by investing substantialty all of the assets of the Saries Trust into the Class B (USD) Class Units of PIMCO
Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund (the "Selected Fund®),

The Selected Fund is a series trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |l an umbrella unit trust established wnder the laws of
Bermuda as a multi-series trust (the "Umbsedla Trust®).

The prmary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek aftractive income, consistent with prudent
investment ranagement. The secondary investment cbjective of the Selected Fund is to seek long-term capital
appreciation. Pacific Investment Management Company LLC, which has substantial expertise in managng fwed
income instruments, is acting as both manager of the Selected Fund (the "5F Manager® and investment adviser of
the Selected Fund (the “5F Investrent Advizer®). The base currency of the Class B (USD) Class units is USD.
The SF Manager invests primarily in a diversified portfolio of names across the global markets which it deterrrines to
have attractive income. The SF Manager also aims to manage the portfolio in a flexible way by adjusting the portfolio
construction of the Selected Fund in response to the market environment in consideration of interest rate risk and
cradit risk in Fespect of the underlying portfolis,

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-to-day investment decizion-making and ongoing

menitering responsibility over the portion of the Seres Trust's portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash
and money market securities (the "Sub-advised Portiolic®™). The Sub-advised FPortfolic may generate a certain amount
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continuad)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

of income each year. Although the Manager does not intend to distribute such income in principle, such income may
ke distributed to unitholders on each distibution date,

At December 21, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Series Trust held 100.0% of the Selected Fund's net assals,

Cumently the Selected Fund has one Class of units - Class B (USD). The Series Trust imwests into the Selected Fund
by purchasing the Selected Fund's participating shares in the Class B (USLC). The Selected Fund allows repurchases
of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund's portfolio and comesponding movernents in the fair value of the
Selected Fund may expose the Seres Trust to a loss.,

Final Repurchase Day

The Senes Trust will continue until the eardier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day
following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day”™), unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

The units are compulsornly repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

{in the net aszet value on any valuation day is 530,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereaRer the
Manager determines that all of the umits should be compulsorly repurchased by giving notice to all
unitholders; or

(i} the Trustes and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsarnly repurchased, (each
a "Compulsory Fepunchase Event™).

Upen the oceurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at
the final repurchase price per unit, The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in 8% sole
dizeretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 31 as the MNet Asset \Value per unit on the
Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding waluation day).
Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs andior
such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder is
able to recelve an amount in respect of each unit repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase
Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also
a valustion day the immedately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price”). There is no repurchase fes
applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased,

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG ("UBS) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suisza”) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Departrnent of Finance, the Swizs Mational Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority { FINMA),

On June 12 2023, UBS Group AG completed the take over of Credit Suisse Group AG.

The Series Trust has no exposure related to investments in inancial assets with Credit Suisse International.
The financial statements were autherized for issue on April 30, 2024,

Z SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently apphed to all the periods presented, unlest otherwise stated. The financial
staternents have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Acceunting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial
staternents in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accownting estimates and reguires the Trustee
and the Manager o exercize their judgment in the process of applying the Seres Trust's accounting policies. Areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual resuits
may differ from these estimates.

The Seres Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 185 2T) (2012) (the
Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continuad)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

[Expressed in U5, Dollars)

Classification and measurement of financlal assets and financial llabilities

IFR.S 8 contains three principal classification categodies for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FWTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCH. The classification of
financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business madel in which a financial asset i= managed and its
confractual cash Bow charactesistics.

On initial recognition, the Senes Trust classifies financial aszsets az measured at amortized cost or FWTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and iz not designated as at
FYTPL:
it R is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and,
ii} Hs contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of
principal and inerest (SPP).

A financial asset is measured at fair valse through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i} Bz contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding;

i} |5 not held within & business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash lows, or to
both collect contractual cash fows and sell;

iii} At initial recognition, it is irevocably designated as measured at FVYTPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would ctherwise arise from
measuring assets or labdiies or recognizing the gains and |losses on them on different bases,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash Bows such thal it would net meet this condtien. In making this assessment, the
Series Trust considers:

- contngent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and edension features;

- terrs that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assels {(e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
The Series Trust has determaned that it has two busmness models:

- Heldto-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, receivables for units issved,
sale of investment in the Selected Fund and other assets, These financial assets are held to collect
contractual cash flow.

- Qther business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (investment i the
Selected Fund). These financial assets are managed, and their parformance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, with Frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business madel in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented invesiment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether
the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related lisbities or
expected cash outlows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets:;

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's management;
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continuad)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

- the nsks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed,

= how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value ofthe
azsels managed of the contractual cash Nows collected, and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior perods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales actvity,

Transfers of financial assets to third parbes in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, conwstent with the Sedes Trust's continuing recognition of the asssts.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, fee
agent fees, investment management fees, units repurchased, distribution fees, administrator fees, printing fees,
custody fees. professional fees, transfer agent fees. registration fees and agent member company fees.

impairment of financlal assets

The ‘expected eredit lozs’ (ECL) model applies to financial assels measured at amortized cost and debt investments
at FVOCL, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Bazed on the Seres Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a materal impact on the Series Trust's
financial assets becausa;

- The majority of the fnancial assets are measured at FYTPL and the impairment requirentents do not apply
to such instruments.

- The financial aszets at amodtized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 menths), of high credit quality
andior highly ccilateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such ascels are expected to be small,

Changes in material accounting policles

The Seres Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Staterment 2)
from January 1, 2023, Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting policies themsehes,
they impacted the aceounting policy infermation disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of 'matenal rather than signifcant’ accounting policies. The amendments
also provide guidance on the applicaion of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand cther information in the
financial statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended December 31,
2023

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods baginning after January 1,
2023, and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended
standards in prepanng these Snancial staternents as they do not have a matenal effect on the Series Trust's financial
staternents.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and shert-term deposits with original maturity of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

At December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 the Senes Trust held the following balances as cash and cash
equivalents:

023 w2
Zash i 11.96a8 i 7,385
Time depaosit 4 20T 435 243017
Cash and cash equivalents in the Staternent of Financial Pesitien ] 4,215, 403 E; 2433 402

w
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continuad)
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(Expressed in U5, Dollars)
2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(&) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through proft or loss:
=  Mandatorly at FWTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund,

Financial assets at fair value through proft or loss consist of the following:

Decernber 31, 2023 December 31, 2023

= Fair Vatue - Cost
I sbmand in Salected Fund £ 424 038 087 £ 396 539 TE1

Decernber 31, 2022 December 31, 2022

= Fair Value = Cost
rrétment on Selicled Fund [ 383 741 445 [ 383 29T (&8

Financial assets at amortized cost:
= Cash and cash equivalents and receivables for units issued receivable for sale of Inwvestment in the
Selected Fund and other assels.

Financial liakilities at amortized cost:
= Other liabdlities: purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, fee agent fees. imvestment management fees,
units repurchased, distribution fees, organization fees, administrator fees, printing fees, custody fees,
professional fees, transfer agent fees, agent member company fees and registration fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition
The Senes Trust recognizes financial assets and Eabiliies on the date # becomes a party to the contractual

provigions of the mstrument, Regular purchases and sales of imestments are recognized on the rade date - the date
on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to recefve cash flows fom the invesiments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ocvmership, Financial iabilties are derecognized when its contractual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets
and liahilities at fair value through profit or lozs are measured at fair value. Gains and loszes ansing from changes in
the fair value of the “financial azzets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arse. Realired gains or bosses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-cut method. Financal assets and liabilities cther than those at fair value
through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if
any. This iz considered to approximate fir value due o the short-term or immediate natwre of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of fnancial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
sacurities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value of a liabilty reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assels for
which market quotations are not readity available are valued at thewr fasr value as determined in good fsth in
accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with acvice from the Manager, The resulting change in
unreaized galns of lesses are roflected in the Statement of Comprahansive IRcom.
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[Expressed in U5, Dollars)

(E) Forward Contracts

Forerard contracts are commitrments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, curency, commocity
or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be setted in cash or another financial asset.
Ferward contracts are valued using cbsesvable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commeodity prices, applied
to notional amownts stated n the applicable contracts, Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{F) Imvestment in the Selected Fund

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority ofthe Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The Selected
Fund is denominated in USD. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series
Trust's investmant in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected Fund's offering
documentation. The Senes Trust reconds its investments in the Selectad Fund at fair value based primarily on the
Selected Fund's net assets value (NAVT), as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust
reviews the details of the reported information obtained from the Selected Fund's administrator and considers: (i) the
liquidsty of the Selected Fund, or its underlying investments, (ii} the value date of the MAN provided, (iil} any
restrictions on redemptions, and {iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests substantially all of its
assels in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is generally
based on net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively. of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series Trust's
investment in the Selected Fund is based on available information and does not necessarity represent the amount
that might ultimately be realized as such amount depends on future crcumstances and cannot reasonably be
denominated unit the Selected Fund's undedying investment are actually liquidated. Further. the Seres Trust's
investment in the Selected Fund in indrectly subjected to restrictions, if any, of the liquidity of the Selected Fund's
investrments.

The Series Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business
Day. The Series Trust may at amy time request the repurchase of its units at the applicable net asset value of such
units. The designated agent of the Selected Fund (the “Agent”) shall effect repurchases at the net asset value per unit
of the relevant class of the Selected Fund determined on the relevant dealing day on which the request for
repurchase of units in a form that is acceptable to the Agent is received by the Agent, calculated as set in the offering
mamorandum of the Selected Fund; provided that if such a request to repurchase units s not received by the Agent
prior to 12:00 noon (Eastem time), the request for repurchase will be deemed to have been received and the
repurchase will be made at the relevant net asset value per unit determined on the next dealing day. After such
repurchase, the Senes Trust must hold either (i} such minimum amount of units as specified herein relating to the
Selected Fund or (i} no units whatsoever. The minimum holding requirements for the Salected Fund is $100,000
investment in Class B (USD). The investment minimum is in U.5. Dollars or the equivalent in another currency. For
the Selected Fund payment of the repurchase price will be made by the Trustee or its appointed agent by bank
transfer ganerally within three (3) business days aler the dealing day upon which the repurchase notice is recened,
or deemed to have been received, by the Agent, although under cenain circumstances, payment may teke up to sight
(8) business days ater such dealing day.

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial aszets and liakilities are offsel and the net amount reperted in the Staterment of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized ameounts and there is an intention to setle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
all financial assets and liakslites are shown at their gross amounts as none met the critena for financial instrument
offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Recelvables for sale and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund

Recervaties for secunties sold and payables for securites purchased represent trading transactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Postion dale, respectively. These amounts are
recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables
for securities sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trustwill
not be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Signiicant financial dificulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter banknaptcy or financial recrganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of receivables for securites sold is impaired,

2.5 EXpenses
Expenszes are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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[Expressed in U5, Dollars)
2.6 Forelgn Currency Translation

(&) Functional and Presentation Cumency
The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the imvestors in U3, Dellars. The Trustee considers
the U.5. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underhing tran sactions,
events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in U_S. Dollars, which is the Seres
Trust's functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollar amounts at the date of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expense tems dencminated in foreign cwrencies are translated mto LS. Dallar amounts on the respective dates of
such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through proft or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency ransactions and transiation are disclosed
saparately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

2.7 Distributions

The Senes Trust may generate a certain amount of income each year. The cument policy of the Series Trust is that
the Seres Trust is not expected to pay distributions to unitholders provided that, the Manager may, in its discretion,
declare and pay distributions to unitholders from time to tifme.

If the Manager does declane any distributions, it is anticipated that any such distributions are declared on an annual
basis on each distribution declaration date from investment principal (a reafzation of units in the Selected Fund) and
generated income received during the relevant distibution pericd (if any), SF Manager does not expect to declare
distributions with respect to the Selected Fund.

Amy such distribution is determined by the Manager in its scle discretion taking into accownt:
{a) an amount equal to the distribution s received from the Selected Fund (net of all applicable taxes) (if anyj;

i) st accrued on the dstibutions recelved fom (8) above, from the Hme received by the Custodan untl paid
out on the corresponding distribution date {the iterns referred to in paragraphs (a) - (b) hereafer referred to as the
“Generated Income®); and

{c} realized and wnrealized capital gains from the Selected Fund and miscellanecus costs, among other factors, per
unit each year.

Ary distribution may be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units. that is in excess of
any Generated Income recesved (and which may also be in excess of any eapital gain) over a distribution perod,
where the Manager deemns the Generated Income received to be insufficient of itzelf to fund that year's distribution
{such as where the Selected Fund does not declare a distribution during the relevant distnbution period).

These were no distributions declared and paid during the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,

2 & Repurchases of Units

The Senes Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies its pultable
instruments as lisbiliies i accordance with A3 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation.
The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definfion of a financial liability to be classified
a5 equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria inciude:

=  The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets:
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=  The puttable instruments must be the most subordnated class and class features must be identical;
*  There must be no contractual cbligations to deliver cash or ancther financial asset other than the cbligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

*  The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classifed as equity at December 31, 2023 and
Deceamber 31, 2022,

Units can be put back to the Seres Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Senes Trust's total
equiby.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exgrcises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust,

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding units.

The Selected Fund finances its cperations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder's option
and entiles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Seres Trust's net assets. The Seres Trust holds
shares in the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust's maximum exposure o loss from s interests in the Selected Fund is equal to the total fair value of
its investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the Selected Fund the
Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Sedes Trust. enter into certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications, The Series Trust's mEemum exposure under these arrangaments is unknown, However, the Senes
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to theze contracts and expects the rick of loss to be remobe.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables Tor Units Repurchased

Recefvabde for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that iz receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payahle for repurchase of units iz camied at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Staternent of
Financial Position date.

211 Net income/{loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL

Mot income from financial instruments at FYTPL inchudes realized and unrealized gainsfosses on financial assets
and liabidlities at fair value through profit and loss. Met realized gain or loss from financial instruments at PVTPL is
calculated using the first in, first out method. Met realized (loss)gain on financial assets and liabiliies at FVTPL
reprecents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and s selttement price of the sale trade, Met
change in unrealized (depreciation)fappreciation on financial aszets and liabdities at PVTPL reprezents the difference
beteraen the camying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the peried, or the transackon price if @ was
purchased in the current reparting period and its carrying amount at the and of the reporting period, Refer to Note 7
for further details.

Interest income présented on the Statement of Comprehensve Income comprse interest on Rrancial assels and
liabilities at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

2,12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman lslands Government exempling it from all local income,
profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. Mo such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present
time,

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by cerain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withhelding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Mo withholding
tax expense was paid during years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022
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The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman |slands. Many of
these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capftal gains taxes may be applicable fo non-resdents
inchuding the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and,
therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a ‘withheiding' basis.

In accordance with 1A5 12 - [ncome Taxes, the Series Trust is reguired to recognize a tax liability when it iz probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tex Eability to be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced
from such foreign country. assuming the relevant taxing authorties have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax lmbility is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation
authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, Thers is sometimes uncetainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore imvestment Seres Trusts,
This creates uncertainty abowt whether of not a tax Rability will ulimately be paid by the Seres Trst. Therefore,
when measuring any uncedain tax liabilites management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances
available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the
relevant tax authorities.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a
liability to record for any unrecegnized tax benefits in the accempanying financial statements. While this represents
the Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital
gains eamed by the Seres Trust, This could happen without ghving prier warning, possibly on a retrospective basis,
and could result in a loss to the Seres Trust,

2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Sedies Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it holds an interest but
does not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:

*  the veling rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding whe contrels them as they relate to
administrative tasks anly,
= the entities' activities are restricted by their respective imvestment strategy or offering documents: and
*  these entities have a narrow and well-defined cbjective to provide investment opportunities to investors,
The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust's interest in the other funds are disclosed in Mote 5.
3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The hNet Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Met Asset Value of the Seres Trust
by the tetal number of units of the Senes Trust then cutstandng. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of
the Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day,

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in UL.S. Dellars.

The minimum initial subscripion must be no less than 1 wunit. AR unitholders must complete a subserption application,
The initial purchase price of units is 5100 per unit. All payments for the wnits must be made in 5. Dollars.
The Trustee may reject amy subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

Afer the initial issue of units, an eligble investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in U.5. Dollars.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00 p.m.
{Tokyo time) by no |later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscriplion applications
are imevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of December 31, 2023 were as follows:

Net Assst Value per

Claszes of units Tatal net assets Units outstandin urit
Clags ALnds [ 425 608 0132 3,589 160 E 185857 7
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Net Anaet Value per
Classes of units Tatal net assets Units outstanding unit
Class AUnds ¥ 384 BE5 308 3832017 ] 100, 3584

A= of December 31, 2023 and Decerrber 31, 2022 all izsued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of
interest in the net assets.

A unitholder may transfer its heldings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or
unitholder until entered into the Seres Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or
a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the redevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may
be submitted in wnits. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holdng units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders, then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit,
Repurchase notices are imevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Contingent Defermred Sales Charge ["CDSC")
The repurchase procesds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if applicable).

Feor units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether voluntarily or by way of
a compulsory repurchase), a COSC, calculated as a parcentage of the purchase price paid at the time of subscription
for such wnits will be charged by the Distributor in accordance with the followmng scale and paid to the Fee Agent.

Holding Period COSC
1 year or less 2.00%
Meore than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.E80P%
More than 2 years to 3 years of less 1.20%
(More than 3 years to 4 years o less 0.80%
More than 4 years to 5 years or less 040
More than 5 years Mone

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable to the COSC, units will start ageing from the first day of
the month which follows the month in which such units were issued until the relevant Repurchase Day.

The COSC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the relevant repurchasing
unitholder to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Trust,

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurring o the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final Repurchaze Day,
the COSC shall similardy apply; and the CDEC will be caleulated as if the relevant units were repurchazed on the day
on which the Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust takes effect, unless the Manager in its
discretion determines othenwise.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appantment Agreemant. the Fee Agent shall continue to be entithed to
receive the CDSC ifits appomntment as Fee Agent is terminated,

Armounts peryable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but may be
made in kind {or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in
consulftation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is
made by the Trustee, distrbutions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such apgliicable currency as

a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to
such untholder. Mo such repurchase proceads will bear interest prior 1o actual dstnbution,
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During the year ended Decernber 31, 2023, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as follows:

FProcesds from units  Proceeds from wnits

Classes of units issued repurchased
Class Alnds ¥ G3.544230 ¥ 152,568 427}

During the year ended Decernber 31, 2022, the proceads from units issued and repurchased were as follows:

Proceeds from units  Proceeds from units
Classes of units |55 repurchased
Class ALnds [ 43352737 % (178,519 846)

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the number of unils issued and repurchased
weare as follows:

Al At
Classes of units December 31, 2022 Units issued Units repurchased  December 31, 2023
Class Alnds 3,632,817 666 649 {506 A06) 3,391,160

At At
Classes of units December 31, 2021 Units isswed Umnits repurchased  December 31, 2022
Class A Lnts », 10, 003 430,245 §1.783,387) ENEFETE

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any
circumstances where the calculation of the Met Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder
of such & suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifed. Subscrption applications and repurchase
notices cannot be withdrawn dunng such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or
repurchase date, asthe case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING EETIMATES AND JUDGMEMTE

Management makes estimates and assurmptions conceming the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilties. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expactations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to tme, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as everthe-counter derivatives, Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and penodcally reviewed by the Manages,

4 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGENENT

5.1Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Seres Trust's activities expose it
to a vanety of financial nsks: market msk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credt nsk and
liquidity risk. The management of these risks is camied out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be matenally affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund. Fer
example, if ancther unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund the
Selected Fund and, in tumn, the Series Trust, may expenience higher pro rata cperating expenses, thereby producing
lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its cther unitholders,
resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment actvities or be precluded from
ivesting in cortaln instruments due 1o regulatory restricions on certain of its direct or indireet investors o atherwvise,
which may have an adverse effect on the performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Seres Trust,

{8) Market Risk
{i) Currency Risk

All inancial asseds at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and other assets and liabilities held
by the Series Trust are denominated in LS. Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Seres Trust has litle
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cumency risk exposzure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign cumrency
rabes,

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or queted in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Series Trust, For this reason, changes in foreign cumency exchange rates can
affect the value of the Senes Trust's portfolio.

Generaltly, when the Series Trust's functional cwmency nises in value against ancther currency, a security
denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is warth less gving effect to the conversion into the
Series Trust's fmctional cumency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's functional cwrrency decreazes in value
against ancther currency, & security denominated in that currency gains value,

Thi= risk, generally known as “currency risk,” means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Seres Trust may increase those retums, Currency rates
may Buctuate significantly over short periods of lime for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entiies such as the
Intemational Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a result, the
Series Trust's investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its retums. Certain positions taken
by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting cwmency price movements. Predicting future prices is
inharently uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves aganst a position, will not be hedged. The
speculative aspect of atempting to predict absolute price movemnents s generally percenved to exceed that involved
in atternpting to predict relative price flucteations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Seres Trust may be exposed to the
performance of a particular currency or currencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses
attributable to its curency activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the other currencies of
the Series Trust In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy
designated by the Manager.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increasze when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer-term securities generally change more in response to interest
rate changes than prices of shorter-teem securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-tesmn or long-tesm
interest rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When
interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the dabt
price of the debt security. The bigger the security's duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt
sacurity for a given movement in interest rates may be, Therefors, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprized of cash and cash eqguivalents whose maturity is less
than three months and indrectly, the investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund's {and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund's assat yield and borrowing
rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from fs investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fived income securities generally decBne, reducing the value of the Selected
Fund's (and indwectly, the Senes Trust's) investrments, A major changs in ntes ot rates or a significan decling in the
market value of the Master Fund's (and indirectly, the Trust's) iwestments, or other market event, could cause the
vaiue of the investments of the Master Fund's investors (and indirectly the unitholders' investments in the Series
Trust), o its yield, bo decline.

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the
values of shorter-duration debt securities.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the

Selected Fund, Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may resull in an
increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.
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At December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, should interest rates have lowered or nisen by 50 basis pointz with
all cther vanables remaining constant, the increase of decrease in total comprehensive income of the Senes Trust
{being increase in net assets attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would amount to
approximately 521,037 and 312,130, respectively, assuming that the cash position will be held for one year.

{iil) Market Price Risk
The rmarket prices of investrments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or
down, semetimes rapidy or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting secunties markets
generally or particular industries represented in the sacurities markets. The value of a secunty may decline due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived
adverse economic condtions, supply and demand for particular secunties or instruments, changes in the general
cullook for corporate eamings, changes m intarest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also
decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shofages or increased production
costs and compelitive condiions within an industry. During a general downturn in the securties markets, multiple
assel classes may decline in value simulaneously. Eguity secunties generally have greater price volatility than fixed
income securites.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022, would have increasad the total equity by 54,240,381 and 53 837,414, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all
ol being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in market price risk of the Selected Fund's at
December 31, 2023 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund,

Country Hame Fair Yalus % of Net Assets
Investments in securities

Arginting £ 1271458 0. 5%:
Aysiralia 443,751 0. 1%
Barmuda Jnz4ae 0%
Cayman kslands 12,347 566 19%
Cyprus 1637 473 e
Firland 1173 5%
Framaa 11568 179 2. 70
Gerrmany 1.099, 218 0.3%
iredand 10 885 500 2 5%
Enrasl 5426 580 1. 3%
My 1,750,543 0.4%
Japan 1322 840 3%
Lueembourg 8850072 21
Wil LT et ) 1 0%,
Mathedands 5374 058 0 5%
Fanama 1153094 [IE-Y
Far 2 ESS 000
Romania 13T See 0.3%:
Russia T4, 0.0%"
South Afnca G552 409 1.3%
Spain 4 403 GE9 1 0%
Switzeriamnd 5550879 1.3%
Turkisy 3947 200 10, 9%
Ursted Kimngdom AT 53T (oG & 4%
Lirelsd States A50, 315 460 113.3%
Total Investmant in securities £ £04, 55T 062 142.6%

* A zero balance may refiect amounts rounding to legs than 0.05%
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The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in market price risk of the Selected Fund's at
December 31, 2022 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund,

Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assels
Investments in securities

Arganting £ 1 065, 102 03%
Aysiradia 4323 0. 1%
Bermuda 5206012 0 1%
Cayman islards 12 144 512 )
Cyprus 1421 535 045
Firdand 1,614 3532 0%
Framds 1,563 710 10.4%
tredand 13,065 023 3 4%
Raiy 2050412 0. 5%
Japan 1,225 662 0.3%
Lunambourg 8321 308 2.2%
Mamics T 1183681 0 5%
Nethardands 1.351,73@ 0 4%
Feru B58 613 0. 2%
Ramara 1441 583 0.4%
Russia T4 (a0 00%*
Switzariand 4125472 1 1%
Turkay 3696678 1.0%
Ursted Kingdom 17873570 4T
Lirafed Staes I ENT A0 82 5%
Total investment in securities £ 431,872 346 112.6%

* & zero balance may refiect amourts nounding to less than 0.05%

{B) Credit Risk
Changes in an isswer's credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of
the Senes Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on bath the financial condiion of the
issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit nsk associated with dabt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund, Al transacfions in listed securities held by the Selected Fund are
satfed/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers, The sk of defaull is considered minimal, as delivery of
securities sold ks only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the
zecurities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fils to meet their cbligation.

The Imvestment Manager monitors the Seres Trust's credit posftion on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Sedes Trust as of Decembaer 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, is the camying ameunts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other
credit enhancements are heid by the Series Trust. Mone of these assets are impaired or past due.

The cleaning and depository operations for the Selected Fund's security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, substantially all cash and cash equivalentz and
investments are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.

@
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The following table summanzes the credit guality of the Selected Fund's debt portfolic at December 31, 2023 as
a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” Yo ol Met Assels
Aaa I6 196
Aatl 16%
Aai 0.3%
Aad 0.3%
Al 1.5%
A2 1 6%
A3 % 5%
Blaat 1 5%
Baal 2.1%
Biaal 14%
Bat 0.3%
Ba2 2 %
Bal 1.4%
B1 2%
B2 I ™
[=&] 2.3%
Caal 04%
Caal 1.4%
Caal 4%
Ca 2.1%
C 2.1%
MR 76 5%
Wi 0.1
142.6%

*Secunby rafings. It any, ane oblainid Som Moosdy &f SEP S/ Fich's Inistor Serdoe

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund's debt portfolioc at December 31, 2022 as
percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating” o of Met As gets
Asa 5. 2%
Aad 1.79%
Al 0:1%
A2 0%
AL 1.0%
Baal 0.6%
Baad 15%
Bal 0.2
Bas 1.3%
Bl 1:8%
B2 14%
3 029
CaaZ 16%
Caal 06%
ca 1.1%
C 0%
MR B 5%
Wh 0 E%
112.6%

“Secunty ratings, if any, are oblained from Moody'sf S8F s/ Fitch's Investor Sarace
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(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquickty risk ecasts when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the retums of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the idliquid securties at
an acvaniageous bme or price. To the extent that the Sedes Trust's principal investment strategies invole
derivatives or secunties with substantial market andfor credt risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the grestest
exposure to liguidity risk,

The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial Babilites into relevant matunty grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Posstion date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undizcounted cash flows.

At December 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payabdes tor
Purchasa of irvestment m the Selected Fund  § 1855962 § - } 1855 962
Faa agant faes 109,855 - T ESS
Inwestmant management fees 5149178 - 5T9.178
Uirils ropuanchasad 185 455 “ 185 455
Organz abion leas 137,250 - 137,254
Printing fees 105,380 - 103,380
Distilbution fess 89,835 - 89,835
Cushindy heas 63,302 - 63,332
Administrator fees 44,371 - 44 2T1
Profedsaonal fees 0.TE2 - 30,762
Agert member Company less 10,531 - 10,531
Transler apant faes 4.3 - 4213
Ragstraon feas G621 - Fa

Contractual cash out flows § A48 § = 5 3814816

At December 31, 2032 Less than 1 month 1 -3menths Total

Fayamies ror
Purchass of irvestment in the Sefected Fund  § G368 % - H 800 368
Fon agerd foas 648 230 - 848 210
Inwastment management fees 30,255 - 530,365
Urnits repusrchased 241 601 - 249 B0t
Organg alion fead 137,259 = 137,259
Custnition fees 81,612 - g1,612
Prnting faes L4467 - 54 467
Adminislirador et 41,682 - 41,832
Custody lees 35507 - 35,500
Prfesmona fees X211 - 2213
ALBMT Mmismber company lias 9,642 - 9642
Transler agant loes 2 465 - 2aes
Hegsiraton less S — S5

Contrachual cash out flows 3 ZEOEEAS  § - $ Z.B0E,

The Manager monitors the Seres Trust's Bquidity position on an on-gaing basis.
Liguichty risk is managed by inmvesting no more than 15% of the Met Asset Value in illiquid assets,

There were no Series Trust's derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 with
gross settlerment.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with unitholdar
rpurch ases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus, The Seres Trust is managed to include
liquid investrments sufficient to mest nomal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Undts in the Senes
Trust could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments mare rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to
raise cash for the repurchases, These factors could adversely affect the value of the units repurchased and the
valuation af the units that remain outstandng and the lguidity of the Seres Trust's remsaining assets If mere Beuld

assels have been sold to meet the repurchases.

0
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There ware no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
Cecember 31, 2022,

(D) Risk Management
The Series Trust's Investrment Manage:r's team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfodio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Seres Trust is represented by the nel assels attributable to the holder of units.
The amcunt of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Seres
Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust's objective
when managng capital is to safeguard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concem in arder o provide
returns for the unithelder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base o support the
development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Series Trust's policy is to perform the fallewing:

=  Monitcr the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liguid assets and adust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units,

*  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents ofthe Senes Trust
The Manager monftors capdal on the basis of the vakse of net assets atiributable to the holder of units.
5.2 Additional Serles Trust's Risks

{A) Custody Risk
Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's entire holding of mdirect

investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent,
causing the Series Trust tolose all o a portion of the funds o secunties held by these custodians,

(B) Risk of Indemnifi cation

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affEates are entiied to be indemnified out of the assets ofthe Series Trust under
certamn circumstances which may resultin a decrease in MNet Azsel Value per unit.

(C) Settiement Risk

Settlement and clearance proceduras in cerain foreign markets differ signiScantly from those in the United States,
the European Union and Japan, Foreign setfement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve
certamn risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securties) not typically associated with the settlement of
United States investments. At imes, settlements in cedain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of
securities transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to
camy out transactions for the account of the Semes Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in sefting
a purchase of secunties, # may miss attrachive investment opportunities and certain of the Senes Trust's assets may
be uninvested with no return eamed thereon fior some period.

IFthe Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannct settle or is delayed in seltling a sale of secunties, the Senes
Trust gy lose money ifthe value of the underlying security then declines or, ifit has contracted to sell the security to
ancther party; the Series Trust could be Bable for any losses incumed,

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use dervative instruments to hedge the Senes Trust's investments or to seek to enhance the
Series Trust's retumns, Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease mone quickly
and efficientty than cther types of instruments. Derivatives are volatile and invelve signifcant rigks, including:

#  Credit Risk — the risk that the coumerparty (the party on the other side of the ansachon) on & dervative
transaction will be unable to honor its financial cbligation to the Senes Trust,

»  Leverage Risk — the risk associated with cestain types of invesiments or trading strategies that relatively
=small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Ceraimn investments or
trading strateges that imolve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount onginally
invested,
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=  Liquidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to zell at the time that the zeller
would Bke or at the price that the seller believes the securty is curmently worth,

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Sedes Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust's holdings.
While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in
a manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derfvative cutweighs the benefit of the
hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the denvative will not match those of the holdings
being hedged as expected by the Manages, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
reduced and may be increased. There is no assurance that the Seres Trust's hedging strategy will reduce risk or
that hedging fransactions ane either avadable or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the
Series Trust and may choose not to do =o. Because the Manager may use derivatives bo seek to enhance the Series
Trust's returns, Bs investments will expose the Series Trust to the risks outined above o a greater extent than if the
Manager used dematives solely for hedging purposes. Use of dematives to seek to enhance returns is considered
speculative.

A= of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative
lrabilities subject to netting arangements and simitar arrangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The fnancial institubions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in
miatarial losses 1o the Sedes Trust, In addtion, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Seres Trust
to the counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the
year ended December 31, 2023,

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(F) Generated Income and Distributions

Thera is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income. Distnbutions (if any) may be paid in whole or in part
eut of investrment principal attibutable lo the units or, atematively, the Generated Income may be zero, A distribution
can in effect result in & retum of an investor's initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent
the distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this possibility, investors seeking capital preservation
may not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Series Trust's investments causzed by dedining
assel values and @ return of capital to investors by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the
Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder's
initial imvestrment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the Selected
Fund fail to pay any distribubions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-treaty tax rate
applicable to the Senes Trust, then the Series Trust will gain cerrespondingly less than investors may previously have
expected. Furthermore, ifthe interest rate at which the distributions received accrue falls during the yearly period, this
may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in
units does not give a unitholder a drect interest in the Selected Fund,

{H) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase
Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and wtilizes the last traded market price for #s fair
valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilties.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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The fair value of Enancial asssets and liabdites that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Senes Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market condibions
existing at each period end date. Valuation techniqgues used for non-standardized financial instruments such as
oplions, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and cther valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of
market inputs and relying as Rttle as possible on entity-specific inputs,

Feor instruments for which there is no active market, the Senes Trust may use intemally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estmated based on assumptions. The
culput of a modal is always an estimate of approxamation of a value that cannct be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employed may mot fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds,
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk
and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair valus herarchy has the fellowing levels:

*  Level 1inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

=  Lewvel 2 inputs are inputs ather than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

=  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement iz categorized in its entirety
i% determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is signifcant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpoese, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement wses observable inputs that reguire significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement s a Level 3 measurement. Assezsing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measwement in its entirety requires judgment, considerning factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘cbservable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
achvisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisernent of the Manager, considers cbservable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the relevant market,

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of Decermber 31, 2023 in valuing the
Series Trust's inancial assels;

{Unadjusted] Quoted Significant Significant

Prices In Active Cther Unobservable
Finsncial Asaste st Ealr Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Yalus Threugh Frafit or Loss Inwestments [Level 1] Inputs [Level 2) {Level 3] December 31, 2023
Imnvesbment inthe Selected Fund
PIMCO Bemuda Low Curabon
Income Fund, Class B {USD Class) $ - § 44 038 08T 8§ R 424 038 087
Financial asaets, at fair valuwe
through profit or loss L] - & 424 038.087 § - § 424,038,087
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The follewing is & summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of December 31, 2022 in valuing the
Series Trust's financial assels:

{Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unebservable

Einancial Assets at Fadr Markets far Identical Ceservable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Inwestments [Level 1] Inputs [Level 2) (Lewel 3} December 31, 2022
Investment in the Selected Fund
PIMCO Bemude Low Curaton
ncome Fund, Class B (USD Class) § - ¥ 3 Ta1 445 § - ¥ 383,741 445
Financial asaste, 8 fair value
through profit or less § - & I Ta1.445 § - § 383,741,445

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3,

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations o altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classifed within
Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that
are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
ilicpickty andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information,

Fer purpeses of caleulating the MAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market guotes are
readity svailable are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or pricing
sarvices and are cassified as Level 2 investmants in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. Foreard
contracts are valued using cbservable inputs which can generally be comoborated by market deta and are therefore
classifed as Level 2 investments in the Snancial statements of the Selected Fund. As of Decernber 31, 2023 and
Decamber 31, 2022 all inancal assels and liabilties were classified as Level 2 investmeants.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at falr value through profit or loss

{iy At December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 cash and cash equivalentz and all other azsets and
liabilities {including receivables for units issued, sale of investrent in the Selected Fund and payvables for
purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, fee agent fees, investment management fees, units
repurchased, distribution fees, organization fees, administrator fees, printing fees, custody fees, professional
fows, transfor agent fees agent member company fees and regestration fees) are deemed shor-term
financial assets and habilties whose carrying amounts approximalte fair value because of their short-term
nature. Refer to Mote 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.

G4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Selected Fund's net asset value was 5424 038,087 and
$363, 741,445, respectively. As of Decernber 31, 2023 the Selected Fund held total ivwestments of 5638 545247
comprising of fixed income securities (agency bonds, asset backed-securiies, bank loan cbligations, commercial real
estale equities, corporate bonds and notes, equity securities, mortgage-backed secunties, soversign issues, LS.
government agencies and U.5. treasury obligations) of 5804 557,062, short-term instruments (time deposits and
government issue) of 519920471, Rtures confracts of 3(1,927.462), forwards contracts of 5(1,172978), swaps
contracts of $17 880, 715, written options contracts of 5(39,008) and written swaptions of 5273 555). As of December
3, 2022 the Sefected Fund held total investments of 3487787 860 comprising of fixed income securiies {agency
bonds, asset backed-securities, bank loan cbligations, commercial real estate equities, common stocks, corporate
bonds and notes, mortgage-backed securities, sowvereign izsuwes, U5 govemment agencies, U.5. treasury
cbligations and warrants) of 5431 822 345, short-tesm instruments (time deposits and repurchase agreements) of
350782429, futures contracts of 31 408512, forwards contracts of 5(873 650), swaps contracts of 55733 326,
written options contracts of 5(1586, 216} and written swaptions of 5{028 786},

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated stuctured entibes represents the amount the Sedes Trust would
expect to receive if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund's liquidity or
redemption restrictions and costs.

The rights attached to the Series Trust's holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of cther investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are govemned by the rights stipulated in their offering docurments. The Series
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Trust has the abfity to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the

respective fund agreements. Refer to Note 1 for information regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund,

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund by buying foreard
contracts, under normal crcumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to approxmately 100% of the LISD
exposure of the MNet Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

The Investment Manager enters into forward contracts for the Senes Trust by buying forward contracts,

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, there were no open forward contracts in the Series Trust,

7. NET GAINNLOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Met gain on inancial asseds and liabikties at 1ar value

Itrcagh proft and (o5% consml of the following December 31, 2023 Decembeer 31, 2022
Met realired Qan an im'estmeants i the Solected Fund = 5153185 5 7 AZ25.438
Todal net realizad gain on Bnancal asgets and abiises af far
valee through profit or loss § 5.153 165 § 1425438
Mowemant in net unrealized sppraciatonddspreciation] on
irvesimaris in the Selected Fund § 47,153 549 § [T AT 016}
Totadl riet change In urealred apposciafnd|de precialign) on
Bnancial aasels and habddies at tar vakes Trough profl orloss § 27,251 949 g (2T 137 NE)

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
£.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.07% on the first US3500 milkon of the net assets, 0.06% on the nest
USE500 million of the net assets and 0.05% on the net assets over USS1 bilion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of
33,750 The fees earned by the Administrator during the years ended December 31, 2023 and Decermnber 31, 2022,
and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B} Custody Fees
The Custedian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Net Assets Value. The fees earned by the Custodian during the
years ended December 21, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and cutstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of
December 21, 2023 and December 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Inceme and
the Staterment of Financial Position, respectivety.

(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Met Asset Value payable monthly in arrears. The Distribution
Feas are payable by the Administrator, on bahalf of the Manager, cut of the assets of the Series Trust, The fees
eamed by the Distributor duning the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and cutstanding fees
payable to the Distributor as of Decermber 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees
The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Mat Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Transfer Agent
during the years ended Decernber 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer
Agant as December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, recpectively,

{E) Professional Fees
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Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022 have been disclosed i the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if cne party has the abiity to control the other party or exercise significant
inflwence over the other party in making fnancial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and
Agant Member Company are all related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

{A) Trustee Fees

The Trustes is entitied to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of 310,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the years ended December 31, 2023 and Decamber 31, 2022, and
outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, have been disclozed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent
faes.

(B) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.55% of the Met Asset Value payable quartedy in amears.
The fees earned by the Investrnent Manager during the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
and outstanding fees payable to the Irvestment Manager as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees”) and 0.55% of
MNet Assets Value (the "Sales Administrative Fees™), accrued on and calculated as at each waluation day.
The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees are paid by the Administrator. on behall of the
Trustes cut of the assets of the Series Trust, The fees eamed by the Fee Agent duning the years ended December 31,
2023 and Decernber 31, 2022 and ocutstandng fees payable to the Fee Agent as of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, have been disclosad in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expenses, which are, in
the reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as assocated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and
Trustee Fees (the "Ordinary Costs”).

For the avoidance of doubt the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the Sales Administrative Fees,
investment manager fees, audit fees, formabion expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any
broker fees relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and
expenses, annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust o government bodies and agencies, any
insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 31 and cther similar offering
documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing. translation and delivery of such documents and any
taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of secunties, legal or wnp-nslhm cosls, h:mmng. tax reporting,
anti-money launderning compliance and menitoring. expenses refated to the termination or the liguidation of the Senes
Trust and any other extracrdinary costs and expenses that would not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is liable for
any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust,

The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual f 365 day count faction
basis and are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding for the first accrual penod only,
the matial closing day, and for all cther accrual penods. the last day of each calendar quarter.

(D) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitied to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of 35,000 per annum payabile
monthly in arrears. The fees samed by the Manager during the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, have been
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disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part
of fee agant fees.

(E) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entited o receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable
quarterly in amears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out
of the azsets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Agent Member Company during the years ended Decembsar
31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and cutstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of December 31,
2023 and December 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive income and the Statement of
Financial Position, respectively.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Senes Trust may bormow up to 10% of its Met Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During
the years ended December 31, 2023 and Decemnber 31, 2022, the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

10, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Fellowing a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its narme and is now ncorparated under
the name of UBS Managemant (Cayman) Limited.

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee rescheed to change the name of the Trust from Credt Suizsse Universal
Trust (Cayman} Il to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il The Master Trust Deed was revised through a Deed of
Armendment on March 1, 2024,

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent fransactons and events through Apnl 30, 2024, the date on which these
financial statements were available to be issued. Effective January 1, 2024 through April 30, 2024, there were
subseriptions of 310,543,204 and repurchases of 318,375,390, There are no other subsequent events to reporn as
relates to the Senes Trust.
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2024
426,931,706.83 66,985,584,802
2,675,570.88 419,797,071
424,256,135.95 66,565,787,731
3,916,513
108.32 16,995
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2024

1,686,233,022

9,927,297

13 83,517,701

66,622,881,139

1,650,985,704

20 152,365,213,660
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2023 2022
UsD usD
60,034 9,419 14,396 2,259
60,034 9,419 14,396 2,259
60,034 9,419 14,396 2,259
185,000 29,027 205,000 32,165
(25) ) 58 9
245,009 38,442 219,454 34,432
(115,081) (18,056) (112,703) (17,683)
129,928 20,386 106,751 16,749
129,928 20,386 106,751 16,749
129,928 20,386 106,751 16,749
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

usD usD
9 2,249,019 352,871 1,984,033 311,295
10 185,864 29,162 205,864 32,300
2,434,883 382,033 2,189,897 343,595
10 451,584 70,854 336,526 52,801
451,584 70,854 336,526 52,801
11 735,000 115,322 735,000 115,322
1,248,299 195,858 1,118,371 175,472
1,983,299 311,180 1,853,371 290,794
2,434,883 382,033 2,189,897 343,595

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usD usb usD
2023
11 735,000 115,322 1,118,371 175,472 1,853,371 290,794
129,928 20,386 129,928 20,386
12 31 735,000 115,322 1,248,299 195,858 1,983,299 311,180
2022
11 735,000 115,322 1,011,620 158,723 1,746,620 274,045
106,751 16,749 106,751 16,749

12 31 735,000 115,322 1,118,371 175,472 1,853,371 290,794
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

) usD
129,928 20,386 106,751 16,749
4 (60,034) (9,419) (14,396) (2,259)
69,894 10,966 92,355 14,490
20,000 3,138 4,999 784
20,000 3,138 4,999 784
115,058 18,053 112,595 17,666
115,058 18,053 112,595 17,666
4 60,034 9,419 14,396 2,259
264,986 41,576 224,345 35,200
264,986 41,576 224,345 35,200
9 1,984,033 311,295 1,759,688 276,095
2,249,019 352,871 1,984,033 311,295
9 2,249,019 352,871 1,984,033 311,295

2,249,019 352,871 1,984,033 311,295
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2023 2022
60,034 14,396
60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022

(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108,643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864

2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526

2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
13
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
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2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Rafareace

UsD b MNale

2023 2022

interestincome
- fram financial instruments measwved at amorhised
cos!

14398

14,395

60,034

'_l'at.al interest incomea

60,024 14,356

"Hérvice fee income
Cther (osses)/fevenues

185,000

(=5)

2000

Total revenuas

245,009 219,454

‘General, adm nistrative and ofher operaling expenses

&

U5, 081) T (112,709)

Operating profit before allowance and taxation

128,828 106,751

Prefit before tax

108,751

----------------------------------------------------- e e LT L LT T

T

Incoma tax expense

Prafit after tax

129,928 106,751

The accompanying notes fom an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

Feakerer,
= - ME 2023 2022
BSltS et ee et r et ettt s n e e
Cash and due from banks i i e SR MENG  1,008 030
‘Chrar aseats 10 186 B84 25 BEL
Total assets 2,434,883 2,188,857
Other Fabilties 10 451,584 335,508
Total liabilities 451,584 336,526
Sharaholders'equily _ ........cccoimeninrmn =
e —— i1 7a5000 785,000
"Retained earnings 1,248,299 1,118371
Total shareholders' equity 1,983,299 1,853,371
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity 2,434,883 2,188,897

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors an 14 June 2024

u'nc.\zup "'Liﬂ
¥

Diact

Diractor l'

B o T e

The accomparnying notes form an integral part of these financial stadements,
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Retained Tokal

usD aamings
202‘B|. Larssssmsa ssama sy PR ey s sams P

Balance at 1January U 7es000 18371 1883371
Profit for the year - 126,528 126,528
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,248,299 1,983,299

Baiance af 1 January
Frofil for the yaar

733,000 101,620 1,746,620
— 108,751 106,751

Balance at 31 December

735,000 1,118,371 1,853,3T1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

Rterwnce 2023 2022
Uusp aae
Cash flows from operating activities
Frofic before tax for ihe period 199,928 108,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
_generated from operating activities
Hon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments;
Interest Income 4 (B0 034) (14,396
f}ashgnﬁmatcdﬁmupemuﬁg.a::hmﬁhﬁnm ................................................ A
changes in operaling assets and liabilities 69,894 92,355
Net decrasse in operaling 8ssels: . .....eeeiesmesasssnse
(Other assets 20000 4,989
Net decrease in operating assets 20,000 4,895
Nl s N O e i teemimamensassamsasnade sen s st aaan
Other liabliies 115,058 112,535
MNetincrease in operating abilities: . 115058 112,595
Intarast income racaied 4 60034 14,3396
Net cash generated from operating activily 264,986 224,345
Net increase in cash and cash eqguivalents 264,988 224,345
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginaing of year 9 1,984,033 1,769,688
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2.249.019 1,984,033
Cash and dus from banks L] 2,249,019 1,884,033
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,033

The accempanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalemants.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
1. Principal activities

UBS Management {Cayman) Limited (the ‘Company’) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
Emited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts. The Company's registered office is ofo Maples Corporate Servicas
Limited, PO, Box 309, Ugland Heuss, Grand Caymen KY 11104, Cayman Istands.

Key developments during the year

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by operation of
Swiss law to all assets and llabifties of Credt Suisse Group AG, and became the direct or indirect
sharehclder of all of the former direct and Indirect subsidiaries of Credit Suisse Group AG (the
Transaction).

Upan the completion of the Transaction, sach outstanding, registered Credit Suisse share corverted
to the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse depository in the
case of Credit Suisse American dapository shares (ADS), the memsr consideration consisting of
172248 UBS Group AG sharas. In aggregate, Credit Sulsse sharsholders racatved 51% of the
outstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition date, with a purchase price of LSD 3.7 billien

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Direclors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Cradit Suisee AG, ard both entifies entersd inte a definitive merger agreement. The mesger is
compieted on 37 May 2024,

2.  Material Accounting Policies
(a} Statement of compliance

Thase firancial statements have bean prepased in accordance with !l applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which colective term indudes all applicable indiwidusal Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards, Intermatienal Accounting Standards (lASs") and Interpretations issued by Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASBE™. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Company Is set out below,

(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
The masasurement basis usad in the praparafion of the financial stataments is the historical cost basis.

The praparaticn of financial sistaments in conformity with IFRS bccounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, Babiities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumplions are based on historcal experience and various other faciors that are bellaved to be
raeasonatle undsr the circumstancas, the results of which form the basis of making ihe judgements
about carmying values of assets and fabilies that are nol readily apparent from other scurces, Adtual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to acceunting
estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revisad 1 the revision affects only that
pericd, or in the perdod of the revisicn and fiture pereds if the revision affects beth cument and future
pericds,
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2, Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group has applied the following new and amended standards for its annual reporting paricd
commencing | January 2023

- Cefinition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments 1o 145 B
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments (isied above did net hava any impact en the amounts recognsed in prior pariods
and ara net expected o significantly affect the cument er future periods.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and en hand with banks, and short-term, highly
Fguid investments that are readily corvertble into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having bean within three menths of maturiy at acguisition,

(d} Fareign currency

The Cempany's functienal and presentation cuwency is United States Dollars ("USDY. Foreign
currency fransactions during the year are translated into USD at the forelgn exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates, Maonetary assets and labiltiss denominated in forelgn curencies are translated
inte LUSD at the foreign excherge rates ruling at the end of the reparting peried. Exchanae gains and
losses are recognised in the profil or loss,

Men-monetary assets and izbllities that are measured In terms of historical cost in a forsign eurraney
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. MNon-
monetary assets and fiabiftes denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far value are
translatad using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dabes the fair value was determined, Foreign
currancy differences arising on relrarslation are recognised in profit or loss.

(e} Other assets

Other asscts are inialy recognised at far vaue and thersafter stated at amoriised cost less
Expected Credit Loss {'ECL") {refer to Note 2(g)), except where the receivables are interest-free
lzans made to related parties without any fixed repayment tarms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, In such cases, the recelvables are stalad at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful
dabts.

{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Pravisions are recegrised for labilties of uncartain timing ar amount when the Company has a lagal
or constructive chligation arising as a result of & past event, it is probable that 2n sutflow of economic
banefis will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. VWhere the tme
value ef menay is matarial, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
seitle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an cutflow of ecanomic banefits will be required, or the amount cannot

be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabikty, unless the probabiity of
cuiflow of economic benefils is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will enly be confirmed
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

by the occurrence or non-sccurmence of one or more fulure events are also disclosed as contingent
lighilitias unlass the probakilty of cutiiow of ecenomiz banefits is remaote.

(g} Impairment

The camying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether thers is any objective evidencs of impairment. f any such objectve evidence
enists, the assel's recoverabls amount is estmated at fhe end of sach reporting persicd. An
impaiment loss is recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset excesds its recoverable
amourt., Impairment losses are recegnisad in the proft or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impamant reguirements apoly primarily to financal assets measured at amertised
cost. The impairment requirements are based on & forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorparating reascnable and supperlable forecasts of future economic conditions avalable at the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgsment over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on & probability-weighted basis.

(h) Revenue recognition

Frowvided that it s prebable that the eccnomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if appficable, can be measured reliably, service fee income is recognised in proft or loss when
the investment managameant sarvica is provided,

(i) Expenses
All expensaes are recegnisad in prefitand less on an accusl basis.
(i) Related parties

Far the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered 1o be related to the Company if:
{a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that persom;
(0 has control or joint contral over the Company; i
(il has significant influense over the Company, or
(il is 2 member of the key management personnel of the Coempany or the Company's
parent

(6}  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following cenditions applies:

(i}  The enltity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that sach
pasent, subsidlary and felow subsidiary is related to the othars),

(i) One entity is an assoclate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of & member of a group of which the other entity is 2 member).

(i) Both entitiss are joint ventures of the same third party.

() One entity is a joint venture of a third party and lhe other enfity is an associale of tha
third party.

() The enlity is 2 post-employment benafit plan for the benefit of employess of either the
Comparyy of an entity ralated to the Company.

(v} The entity is contrelled or jointly contrelled by a person identified in (2],

(vil) A person identfied in (a){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
wey management parscnrel of the entily (or of a parant of ke entity).
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2. Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(i) Related parties (continued)

Close members of lhe family of a person are those family members who may be expscied to
influence, ar be influsnced by, fhat parsen in their deelings with the entity.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued & number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards thet are first effective
for the cument scceunting pericd of the Company, The adoption of these amendments had no
rraterial impast to the Company's fnansal pesition, resu't of operelions or cash flows,

The Company has not applisd any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting peried (Note 15).

4,  Total Interest Income

usp 2023 2022
Total interest income

Interest income on cash and duefrom banks 60,034 14396
Total interest income 60,084 14,396

Al the above interast income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost.
6. Service Fee Income

The prncipal acthvities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the adminisbration and
management of assets in trusts.

Revenue represents investment management fee income carned from fellw subsidiary as falows:

usp 2023 2022
Total service fee income

e ‘“‘_‘_13570133233.&"33
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usD 2023 2022
[General administrative and other operaling expenses =~ e
L e e e “8) &9
Audforromuneration e 18380) (B8
Directors' ramuneration CTTETTTTTU08,848) (106,175)
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {115,081) (112.708)

All of tha above expsnditures are paysble lo the Company's immedate holding company and the
immediate holding company setties such expendiiures on behalf of the Company
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7. Taxation

Thare are no taxes on income of gains in the Cayman [slands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Geverner in Council of the Cayman Islands sxempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taxes until 10 October 2039, Accardingly, no provision for Income taxes is includad
in these finarcial statements,

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsorad wiconsalidated sinuciurad antiliss

The Company conziders tself the sponsor of a strustured entihy when aither its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there Is a general expectaticn from the
market that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Company was mvolved in the
dasign or sel up of the stuctured entily and has a form of involvement with the structured entity.

Tha balow unconsolidated structured anbitias are sponsored by the Company where a fieed annual

management fee of USD 5000 (2022: USD B,000) is received but no Interest iz hald by the
Cempany as 2t 31 Decembar 2023
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

qubal se}ac*t Gan}r St?ﬁﬂg:r Fund

Austraien High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (Fer Qualified 'nsﬁﬁgtnn alivestors Onby)
{US REIT Premium Fund (For Gualified Institutional lnvestars Ork) "~ """ """ """
Japan Equty Premium Strategy Fund
Frincipal / C5 Canadian Equity Irg_n-nmu_ﬁqqd {Fur Uua.lrlmd Inslr.lhonal In-ue_s!_ug_s_DnI!ﬁ
‘&_"::IP_’qal REIT Trfpla F"r-ammm Fund [‘or Guaiﬁed lnsh"h.ltmal Im'estars e

US High Div Equily Premium Fund (For Qualfied insttutional Investors Dnl‘g]'
US Small Cap Eq J Premi ur" Fund I[FcrOuulrﬁad Irtstrlutlunal Iwestu 5 Onk}

Darwa Emergmg L.ncal Market Bond Fund (For Qualfied instituticnal Irvestors Oniy)”

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualifisd [nstiutional investors onljF]"""" M

T R R

Jagan Eq'u.ty Ffam-um Fur'd {Fur Gaaifled 'nshb.‘ﬁmal Investors Q-_ily] R
N&IWAM JS R'IT Incumﬂ Fund {Fu' Cusahﬁul:l Insttuhnnal investors Cﬁ'@ﬁ

Daliia UK Figh Divdend Eality Find (For Oualfied instf Ein'iﬁﬁéiéiaﬂﬁiéiﬁiiiﬁiﬁiﬁ.’iZfZZIIZZZZIfZ
Daiwa WL Ventures I, L.P. Fund

'Efazﬁ Eur_urt}r nn"la Fund [Fm C‘maliﬁed nshtu!:pn?! Iwes*-:nrs. 'Dn'y} A ——
Dar.'.'a Drai |an Rea_] Bonl:l Fund {Fu-r G valified Ins@m.nunnal Invam Dr@f}
’\hssa.:; -..lapan Eq_ul*}nﬁ.::t[ur_ﬂ Fund {Fnr {'..‘JaJ ed Inslltulmnal In'.restors Gnl‘f,l__“
AMP Australia REIT Fund '[FD.' Gualified institutional Investors D"l!f,ll R

- RE‘I‘ and ?Ba.l Ea-txtﬂ EEUI[}' Fl..nd For ﬂualrﬁﬂd Insttutmna Immm Onlp}

(D)abﬁaﬁ.m&ﬁcaﬂ H|,g’n ‘Dividend Equr*y Quattre Income Fund (Fer Qualfied Institutional Investers
n

D&Ma Ameﬂmn R"'-I" Gun'!tm In::oma Fund {For ﬂua!iﬂad instutiona Investors Dnh{}

Ehni-:ﬂl Woﬂd Wrap Etabla qum (For Q.Jalt" :.:d Insllri'.m'c:ﬁ;;!.ul?ﬁ;;;;r: E)';I}:."m"m e
s h[:lf Iriph I':ng_na F’Tus F\.Hd'{l'zb} Gua“fﬂ_ll_'mmuhunnl [mestc:s G"I}'}.m....““.....m.._.....,
LS Mun’ -dp.al Bond Fund
:raknh'ﬂirm;Cﬁ-.EbndFunc--"-"--
____u_lgg;_lrlj_g'r Ir: ﬂdand Equrll; Fmrnl.lrn Fund L'Fu{ l]uaiflad rxst.tl..tlmd In'-'nsl-:urs Gny} e
Medstar's Fnﬂaﬂilm

"BSMD Global Advantage

PIMCO Short Term income Strafegy Fund ™
PIMCO Shnrt Tmm | Strategy

D_'a.hva JREIT !.‘.:;-'.remd Ea.l Fund {Fu.f {]uaﬁflea mhtuhr.:nal In'.rastorx- Dn-lfri"“""“ T

Foreign Dercminatad | Man AH' “Ernart | E_ﬂw.ramga fitmiagy Fund

SR A A e T VORI TR o i R
‘“‘UDE“"“T”'“BWF”""’

i Agha
USDyrathmﬂhEund R LT

Presmium Carry St-fatag",y Fund
* The funids were terminated during 2023,

The Company has not provided financial or other support to unconsolidated structured antities that it
was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not curently have the intention to provide financlal or other suppot to
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not confractually required to provide.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks 2,249,018 1,984,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,249,019 1,984,083
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities
UsD 2023 2022
Other assels
Interest and fees recelvabla 185 864 205 864
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
uso 2023 2022
Cther liabilities
Interest and fees payable 451,684 236 b2
Total other llabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital
{a) Authorised and issued share capital
2023 2022

Ha. of UsD Mo. of usp

shares shares
Authorised:
Crdinary sharas of USD 1 each 1,000000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000
Issued and fully paid up: _ _ _
Crddinary shares T35,000 735,000 735,000 T35,000

The holders of ardinary shares are enlitled to recawe dividends as dedlared from time to {ime and are
entitlad to cna vote per share at general mestings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company's residual assets
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11. Share Capital {continued)
(b} Capital management

The Company's primary cbjactives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abiliy to
continue as & going concem so thet it can contnue o previde returns te shareholders, by pricng
sarvices commensurately with the level of sk and by securing access o finance at a resscnable
cost, As tha Cempany is part of a farger greup, the Company's sources of addiional capital and
policies for disinbution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines "capital® as including all components of equity.

The Cempany's eapital structure is reqularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capitel
menagement praclices of the group o which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in Gght of changes in economic condiions affecting the Company or the group, to
tha extant that these do not condlict with the directors’ fiduclary dutias towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed cagital requirennents in the current period,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, Bquidity, nterest rate ard foreign currency risks anises in the normal course of the
Company s busness. These risks ars managed by the Company's fnancial management policias and
practices described below,

(a) Credit risk

The Campary's credit risk is primarily atirbulabla to amounts due frem group companies and cash at
bani. Cradit risk is defined as risk that one party to a inandal instrument will cause a financlal kass to
another party by failing to discharge an obligaticn. Management regulary maontors its risk expasure to
ensure that its credit rsk is kept to a minimal level. The madimum exposure to credit sk is
represantad by the camying amount of sach financial asset in the statement of financal pesition after
deducting any impairment sllowance.

{b) Liguidity risk

The Company's palicy Is to regularly menitor its Bouidiby requirements to satisfy ts contractual and
reasonatly foreseeable abligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial liabilties, which incledes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be seitled between three to twelve
maonths,

(c) Interest rate risk

The Company s exposed 1o Interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interest cn cash
and depestis. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on tha carrying value of the recognised assets or liabiities of the Company.

16
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(d) Foraign currency risk

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)

The Company is expoesed to foreign currency risk primarly through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are dencminated in Hong Keng dollars (HKD). As the HKD Is pegged to the USD,
the Company considers that the risk of movemants in exchange rates betwsen USE and HED to be

Insignificant.

{e) Fair values

The camying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different fiom their fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

13. Material Related Parly Transactions

'n addtion to the transactions and balances disclosed elsowhers in the fnandal stataments, tha
Company entered into the fellowing material related party transactions.

(a) Related party balance sheel transactions

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Parent Fellow Total Parant Fellow Tedal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companes
Assats
Other asses - 185,684 185,664 205,854 205,654
Total assets = 185,864 185,864 =. 205,854 205,864
Liabilides and
Equity
DOher fanlities 081884 LmaoJdoloes | Qaesms L SEREs
_Sl-.am canite 735,000 - F35,000 735,000 —_ 725,000
Total liabilities and
sharaholders’
equity 1,186,584 — 1,186,584 1,071,526 — 1,071,626
16
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13.  Material Related Parly Transactions (continued)

{b} Related party revenues and expenses

31 Dacember 2023 31 Decembar 2022
Parant Fellow Tatal Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
usn Companias Companias
Revenues
Service fee Icome. e JER000 ABB000 i 205000 205,000
Total revenues — 185,000 186,000 - 205,000 206,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key rmanagement personnel (USD) 2023 2022
Director's Fee 106,843 106,175
Total Remuneration of key management personnel 108,843 106,175

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 Decamber 2023, the immediate parent of lhe Company is Cradit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which 15 Incorperated in Hong Kong and tha ulimate controling party of the Campany is UBS Group
AG, which is incorperated In Switrerdand, UBS Greup AG produces financial statements available fer
public use,

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet affective for tha year ended 31 December 2023

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interprelations have
baen published that are not mandatery for 21 Cecember 2023 reperting perisds and have not been
early adopted by the Company, Thasa standards, amandments or interpratations are rot expactad o
have a material impact on the ently in the curent or future reporting periods and on foresceable
future transactions.

16. Subseguent Events

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of USS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and beth enfities entered into a definitive merger agreement. The merger is
camplatad an 31 May D024,

Effective 1 March 2024, the name of Credit Suisse Manzgement {Cayman) Limited has been
changed to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

Tha {inandal statements were approved for iBzue by the beard of directors of the Company on 14
June 2024,
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Grand Cayman KY1-1106
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Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors™ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund (the "Series Trust™), a series
trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (formerly, Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) IIl) (the "Trust"),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors™ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors”™ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust"s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

April 30, 2024
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Independent Auditor®s Report
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse
Management (Cayman) Limited) (the““Company””), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SAs””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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